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The above picture is taken in front of the fir2t school in Townsend. 

lhis school was moved in 1882 ana a l�r�er two-story building took 

its place. 1he botto� picture sho�5 the front of the school after 

it ·::as moved.
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This is a picture of the hotel built by Samuel Townsend and later 

enlarged and improved upon by James L. Dickinson. ~his hotel was 

burned in 1 S25. The photo is in reverse. ~otice also the street 
lamp, which was t:ypical of the to wn. 
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111 Tunnell's Store 

Tomahawk Branch: Jtream, 3.3 mi. long. heading 3 mi. NW of Greenwood. and flowing 
NW to Marshyhope Creek. I mi. W of Andrcwsville: Kent County: 38°51 '45" N. 
75°39'30" W. (map 34). 

Tom Creek: stream. 1.5 mi. long. Aowing SE to the Delaware River. 3 mi. NW of 
Delaware City: New Castle County: 39°37'10" N. 75°36'50'' W. (map 8). 

Townsend: village, (pop. 434). 4 mi. SE of Middletown: New Castle County: 
39°23'40" N. 75°41 '40" W. (map 12). Variants: Charleytown: Charlt:y Town: 
Charleston. 
The village was named in 1855 for Samuel Townsend. a local landowner. Before 
1 ~50. and the advent of the rnilroad. it was a Negro settlement knowr as 
Charleylown. (American Guide Series. 1955). 

Townsend Bridge: bridge, ovt:r Vines Creek. 3.2 mi. NE of Frankford: Sussex County: 
38°33'25"N. 75°12'15"W. (map42). 

Townsend Milt: locality, See Wiggins Mill. 

Trane Udden: point of land. See Crane Hook . 

Trappe Pond Forestry Site: state park, See Trap Pond State Park. 

Trap Pond: reservoir. I mi. long, 5.6 mi. SE of Laurel: Sussex County: 38°31 '30" N . 
75°28'30" W. (map 44). 

Trap Pund Srare Park: .1·1ate park, al o ng the shore of Trap Pond. 5 mi. SE of Laurel: 
Sussex County: 75°24'00" N. 38°28'30" W. (map 44). Variant: Trappe Pond 
Forestry Site. 

Trap. The: sect lenient, See McDonough. 

Travis Con: cove , 1.4 mi. across. on the left shore of the Delaware River. 3 mi. NE of 
New Castle: New Castle County: 39°40' 10" N. 75°30'50" W. (map 6). 

Trelen no: island. See Reedy Island. 

Trinity: /ocali1y. 7.6 mi . N of Frankford; Sussex County: 38°37'25" N. 75°11'15" W. 
(map 42). Variant: Trinity Church. 

Trinity Church: iofa/i1y, See Trinity. 

*Trunk Ditch: Jtream. 2.5 mi. long, heading about 0.8 mi. S of Magnolia and flowing NE 
to the Sl. Jones River, 8 mi. SE of Dover: Kent County: 39°04'1 l" N. 75°25'52" W. 
BGN 1965, (map 22). Variants: Fox Point Branch; Kiunk Ditch. 
The variant name Kiunk Ditch may have come into common use through a 
typographical error. (BGN files). 

Trussem Pond: resen•oir, See Trussum Pond. 

Trussum Pond: reservoir, 0.7 mi. long, on James Branch. 4 mi. SE of Laurel: Sussex 
County: 38°31 ' 15" N. 75°30'40" W. (map 45). Variants: Moores Pond: Trussem 
Pond. 

Tshapecank: stream, See Choptank River. 

T Town: settlemenr, See Stay Lon ville. 

Tubbs Branch: stream, I mi. long. heading at the junction of Graham Branch and Cool 
Branch. and flowing N to Deep Creek, 2.5 mi. E of Seaford: Sussex County: 
38°38'35" N. 75°33'50" W . (map 36). 

Tubbs Cove: cove, 0.2 mi. across, on the S shore of Little Assawoman Bay: Sussex 
County: 38°27'45" N. 75°04'15" W. (map 52). 

Tubmill Branch: stream. 1.3 mi . long, heading 3 mi . NW of Milford and flowing E lo 
Tubmill Pond: Kent County: 38°56'30~ N, 75°25'45" W. (map 27). Variant: 
Tanyard Branch. 

Tubmill Pond: pond, 0.2 mi. across. 2 mi. N of Milford: Kent County: 38°56'30" N. 
75°25'45" W . (map 27). 

Tunnel Goose Pond: cove, 0.2 mi. across, in Little Bay, at the mouth of Miller Creek. 2 .6 
mi. SW of Bethany Beach; Sussex. County: 38°30'20'' N , 75°04'35" W. (map 41). 
Variant: Daiseys Goose Pond. 

Tunne/1'.v Store: seulement, See Williamsville. 
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1. Name 

historic Townsend Historic District 

and·or common 

2. Location 

street & number Main Street, South Street, Commerce Street and vicinity..NA..not for publication 

city, town Townsend _NA_ vicinity of 

state Delaware code 10 county New Castle 

3. Classification 
Category 
~district 
_ bullding(s) 
_ structure 
_site 
_. object 

Ownership 
_public 
_private 
-1L both 
Public Acquisition 
_ in process 
_ being considered 
NA 

Status 
_x.._occupied 
~ unoccupied 
_x_ work In progress 
Accessible 
_ yes: restricted 
_x__ yes: unrestricted 
_no 

4. Owner of Property 

name Multiple (see owners list) 

street & number 

city, town _ vicinity of 

Present Use 
_ agriculture 
-1L commercial 
__x_ educational 
_ entertainment 
__ government 
__ industrial 
__ military 

state 

5. Location of Legal Description 

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. New Castle County Recorder of Deeds 

street & number City/County Building, 800 French Street 

city, town Wilmington state 

6. Representation in Existing Surveys 

code 002 

__ museum 
__ park 
...1L private residence 
_x_religlous 
__ scientific 
--1L transportation 
__ other: 

Delaware 

title Delaware Cultural Resource Survey has this property been determined eligible? yes X no 
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depository for survey records 
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Samuel Townsend's business activities during the two decades prior to the coming of 

the railroad offer some insight into conditions and resources in the vicinity of 

Appoquinimink Hundred in this period. Born in 1812, Townsend grew up on his mother's 

family estate (N-151) at Liston Point, which is located on the Delaware River nine miles 

east of "Lancaster." After plying a boat between Philadelphia and the Delaware Bay for 

two years, and then mining and shipping iron ore from Saint Georges Hundred, he returned 

to Appoquinimink Hundred. In 1837 he bought 400 acres of land at Blackbird (two miles 

southeast of "Lancaster"), most of it in woodland. He cut and shipped the wood to New 

York as lumber and vessel timber. It was in this busin~ss that he laid the foundation 

of his fortune. Later, he purchased 700 acres of woodland in Thoroughfare Neck (just 

south of Liston's Point), 550 acres at Shadding Point, and in partnership with his 

brother, John, 1,300 acres in Mispillion Neck. The two brothers continued in this 

business until 1860. 

In 1845 Samuel and John Townsend purchased the 400 acre Williams Estate, located on 

the western side of the crossroads at Lancaster. They divided the property, and each 

built a house. Samuel's House (.1) forms the western boundary of the District. The 

adjoining 230 acre Davis Farm, north of the crossroads, was purchased by Samuel Townsend 

in 1855. A year after the Delaware Railroad bisected his property, Townsend set out 

10,000 peach trees and the same amount the following year. Previous to this time it had 

not been possible to raise such perishable market crops due to the want of efficient 

transportation. Peach culture was first introduced near Delaware City in the 1830's 

after the opening of the Che~apeake and Delaware Canal, and was limited to that area 

until the railroad provided access to the southern part of Delaware. 

In 1866 when a branch line, called the Queen Anne and Kent Railroad, extended 

westward from Townsend into Maryland, Samuel Townsend bought 357 acres at Kingston, 

Maryland, which he planted in peaches and other small fruit. The effect o·f the railroad 

up and down the state was the completion of clearing woodlands, which were succeeded by 

well-cultivated farms. As mentioned, peaches were a major crop, until the end of the 

nineteenth century when a blight swept through the state destroying most orchards. The 

railroad also had a major effect on the development of the towns that it connected, and 

in many instances was responsible for the establishment of new towns. 

There were three types of cot:!Illunities the.t grew along the Delaware Railroad: 1) 

th.e existing towns, like Middletown, Dover, Seaford and Laurel, that stood on their own 

but experiencec a boom after the coming c;.f the railroad; 2) the newly-formed station 

towns t'hat became the principal shipping point for their locali t:y and grew into 

moderately-sized towns; and 3) the small stations like Greensp~in~ and Brenford that 

never grew beyond their sole fur.cticn as a depot. 

Tm,.'Tisend was one of the new i:-tation !:.L'v.T,s that had previously been an isolated 

crcs§roads, but was suddenly placed i~ the ~ainstream of ecor~~ic activity by the 

railroad company. By the 1860's, each of these towns had 2 few stores and hotels 

clustered around the junction o: the railroad tracks a~d t~e town's main street, 

Businesses found in every cne of these tm.:t1s hy the :88C's included a lumber yard, a 
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cannery, a fruit evaporator, and coal, lime, and grain dealers. Their commercial 

districts were consistently located in a one or two block area on a street perpendicular 

to the railroad tracks. 

In Townsend the lumber yard (.49), the coal and grain dealer's office (.49), and 

the evaporator house (.50) still remain. A cannery exists, however, due to its isolated 

location at the extreme southern end of Cannery Lane, it could not be included within 

the District. The relationship among the agricultural areas, the processing and 
shipping industries in the town, and the railroad company, was an important one since 

they depended on each other in order to make a profit, 

Architecturally, Townsend's main emphasis is on buildings of the late nineteenth 

and early twentieth centuries, Its earliest buildings date from around 1840 with 

significant development occurring through 1935. 

The Samuel Townsend House (.1), probably the earliest building in the District, 

displays the two story, five bay, center hall plan that was prevalent in the 

agricultural areas of southern New Castle County during the middle of the nineteenth 

century. Levi Lattomus opened his store (.107) in 1851, but it is known that a store 

existed on that site before 1849. The store is a two story, gable-roofed building with 

a two-tiered porch on the side facing the railroad tracks. The A. Finley House (.71), 

also pre-dates the railroad, but substantial Queen Anne style additions, made circa 

1905, classify it to later p~riod. 

From the few scattered buildings of the 1840's, Townsend began to develop as a 

clustered community between 1850 and 1870. Three more stores were built around the 

junction of Main Street and the railroad tracks. Of these, only the Maloney Store (.51) 

still exists. The other existing buildings from that period, the Lattomus Hotel (.104), 

the J. T. Hill House (.37), the S. Townsend House (.38) and the S. R. Warren House 

(.100) all follow a symmetrical, three or five bay, center hall plan. 

The decade of the 1880' s was the be·ginning of a building boom in Townsend that 

lasted through the first decade of the twentieth century. Its streets became densely 

developed and, most notably, building styles became varied and highly ornate. Gothic 

Revival and Queen Anne style dwellings trar.sformed the appearance of the town. The 

largest and most ornate dwellings line :'.2in Street and the northern end of Commerce 

Street. Some outstanding examples that ~a•·e been particularly well-preserved are the A. 

Finley .House (.71), ~infield Cottage (.10~), the John ~attornus Eouse (.108), and 611 

Commerce Street (.109). The constructicn c: the brick, Gothic Revival Immanuel M. E. 

Church in 1902 also had a major impact o:-. '.',:::r. Street. 

Between 1910 and 1935 building act!··!:~ ~eclined ~ut r.ew st~les continued to be 

introduced. In particular, two story, h::?-=Jofed plans appea=ed; and varying types of 

bungalows extended development at the fa= e~ds of Xe~n Street. 
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In the midst of the large dwellings in the center of town, the main focus of the 

District is the commercial block, which is contained on Main Street between Taylor and 

South Streets, The range of buildings in this area includes structures from all time 

periods in the town's development; and a full spectrum of functions and architectural 

styles, The circa 1850 Lattomus Store (,107) stands across the street from the 

Mansard-roofed Maloney Store (.51). On the western side of the railroad tracks the 

1890's Evans Store (.8) and the 1920's Harmon Drug Store still stand. Townsend's 

earliest hotel (.104), dating from 1850, stands next to the 1919 Classical Revival style 

Townsend Trust Company Bank (.105) and a 1904 barber shop (.106), In addition, three 

1880's industries still retain their locations near the railroad: the evaporator house 

(.50), the lumber yard (.49), and the coal and grain dealer's office (.49). 

Townsend is a well-preserved example of the late nineteenth century railroad towns 

that came into being with the rise of the Delaware Railroad, The buildings within the 

District span the town's development and still convey the relationship between the 

railroad and the surrounding agricultural area that was responsible for Townsend's 

growth. 

Level of Significance 

The level of significance claimed for the Townsend Historic District is state 

because of its role as a principal station on the Delaware Railroad. This rail line 

played a primary role in the.economic development of Delaware and Townsend's 

relationship to it contributed to the economic prosperity. 



7. Description 

Condition 
---1:L excellent 
__x__ good 
--X- fair 

Check one 
__x_ deteriorated ___ unaltered 
_ ruins .....x__ altered 
_ unexposed 

------------------ - --

Check one 
-~-- original site 
_x__ moved date .5..ee_Buil.d.ing__Inyentr.:u:)L: _ 

Site Number N-10297.26 
------- -- ----- -

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance 

The Townsend Historic District is located in the northwestern portion of 
Appoquinimink Hundred, halfway between the towns of Middletown and Smyrna. The district 
lies primarily within the corporate limits of Townsend except for ten properties that 
extend beyond those limits at the northeast end of Main Street. Townsend originated as 
an isolated crossroads hamlet that was bisected by the Delaware Railroad in 1856. It 
grew slowly, then in the 1880's as the village became a more active commercial and 
shipping center, building activity substantially increased. In 1885, Townsend 
incorporated and became Appoquinimink Hundred's only incorporated town. The natural 
features that characterized Townsend's late 19th century setting still surround the town 
today. Forest and wetlands lie to the south and northeast. To the north and northwest 
are the fertile agricultural lands known as the "Levels." These rich natural resources 
contributed to the prosperity of Townsend at the turn-of-the-century. Grain., peaches 
and lumber were the main p,roducts exported through the railroad tenninal. Buildings 
associated with the transportation of these products have disappeared: a store house, a 
ticket office, a water tank, the station, and a manually operated locomotive turn table. 
Although these elements are missing, the flavor of the late 19th century railroad town 
has been retained by the existing, although modern, grain company that is located 
adjacent to the railroad tracks, Primarily, the historic integrity of the district has 
been retained by the large number of late 19th century and early 20th century commercial 
and residential buildings that display the variety of plans. and materials available to 
contemporary carpenters. Other buildings range from a c.1840 farmhouse to c.1935 
bungalow with few intrusions of modern or heavily altered buildings. 

The Townsend Historic District is composed of 135 sites, 10 of which are vacant 
lots. These 135 sites contain a total of 261 buildings and 6 structures. There are 217 
contributing buildings, 44 noncontributing buildings and 6 contributing structures. In 
terms of building type, this breaks down as 101 contributing dwellings, 13 
noncontributing dwellings, 104 contributing ou~buildings, and 34 noncontributing 
outbuildings. About half of the outbuildings were identified as having specific 
functions. There are 32 garages, mostly single bay with a gable end entrance; 14 meat 
houses, and three privies. The contributing structures consist of two masonry ice 
houses, two cast iron fences, one 1914 picket fence (.45), and one 1929 water tower (.91). 

The plan of Townsend 1.s based on the original crossroads which are now Main Street 
and Commerce Street. When the railroad cut through in 1856, a small community became 
established as a station ter.minal and a commercial center for the outlying areas. Beers 
1868 atlas shows four stores and a hotel (.104) clustered around the junction of Main 
Street and the railroad tracks, In 1866, Townsend was chosen as the junction for the 
Queen Anne and Kent Railroad which terminated at Massey's Crossroad in Maryland. There 
was at least one other documented hotel at this time, as well as the custom of boarding 
guests over night in residences. As indicated on the Hopkins map of 1881, Townsend was. 
increasing in scope and size with more dwellings, and the creation of South Street 
connecting Main and Commerce Streets. Gray Street, parallel to Main S,treet, al though 
not completely formed, was beginning to be delineated at this time. A plank Methodist 
Chu~ch was on the site of the present brick church (.57A), and a freight house and 
office, now demolished, were in place, The greatest growth occurred between 1880 and 
1910. The population census reveals that Townsend nearly doubled its population between 
1880 and 1890, from 199 to 387, and by 25% between 1900 and 1910. Baist's 1893 map 
shows a startling difference from 12 years before. Streets are laid out clearly and 
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1902 brick Methodist Church (.57), replacing a frame one (.57), signaled the advent of 
brick construction, although it was limited to three other public buildings: the 1915 
school (.44), the 1932 Colonial Revival style school (.72), and the 1918 Class.ical 
Revival style ~ownsend Trust Bank. The 1920's brought in the American Four Square (.70) 
and the ubiquitous bungalow. The humbler forms of the bungalow (.7) have a short facade 
and recessed porches. One, on Main Street (.76), nestles among late 19th century 
traditional forms on the site of a blacksmith and wheelwright shop; a vivid testimony to 
the early rise of the automobile as the number of single bay garages suggest. The most 
ostentatious of the bungalows is a highly decorative dwelling constructed completely of 
concrete block (.66), The walls are rock-faced block with ornate concrete lintels, 
concrete hour glass porch balusters and lattice, After this time, Townsend's growth 
slowed considerably and only a few more bungalows, and, eventually, ranch-style houses 
have filtered through the 19th century landscape. 

One of the most notable aspects of the Townsend Historic District is the intactness 
and completeness of its business area, Based roughly on the junction of Main and 
Commerce Streets and the railroad tracks, these buildings represent tangible evidence of 
the important activities of turn-of-the-century life. Building and business types are 
varied, and typical of late 19th century Delaware railroad towns. Two stores face each 
other on the north and east corners of Main and Commerce Streets. One is the 
turn-of-the-century mansard-roofed Maloney Store (.51), and the other, the 1851 Lattamus 
Store (.107). Two non-extant stores also stood in this section. The Reynolds Store on 
site (.134) and another star~ (probably S. Townsend's) stood where the grain silos are 
today. Two hotels that handled the influx of passengers are extant: the 
Townsend-Dickenson Hotel (.17), converted to Harmon's Drug Store and apartments in the 
1920's, and the Lattamus hotel (.104), now a residence. Another store established 
c.1900 was the Evan's Store (.8), a large residence over a store, with a corner 
entrance. The 1882 peach evaporator house (.SO) is on Commerce and Gray Streets and is 
a two story, gable-roofed building, originally 24 feet by 40 feet. Peaches were dried 
there and sent to New York and Philadelphia. The building has been re-used constantly 
since then as an implement, carriage and harness shop, a Studebaker dealership in 1900, 
and presently as an agricultural agent office and fertilizer company. Maloney's lumber 
yard (.49) is important because of its early 20th century storage buildings. On the 
same site is Hart's Grain, Seed and Coal Store, presenting a false front to Main Street. 
Across the street are the 1904 barber shop (.106), still in operation, and the gable 
front Classical Revival Townsend Bank (.105). 

Ma.in Street is the most eclectic street in Tovlnsend with ',:,uildin~s constructed from 
c. 1840 to 1935 in all manners of style. ~-'.ain Street was one o: the original crossroads 
and leads directly no·rtheast to what ~,·as the main road connecting }~iddletOY."Il and Sr:iyrna 
(known today as Route 896). Development en >~ain Street first occurred at the crossroads 
and along the block between Commerce ar.c: South Stree>ts as d1,·ellings and e.c<rly commercial 
buildings, and gradually filled in with leter 19th and early 20th century dwellings and 
commercial buildings. Proceeding northeast, ~fain Street de,·eloped chronologically to 
the District boundary ending with c.1920 dwellings. 



a. Significance 

Period 
__ prehistoric 
_ 1400-1499 
_ 1500-1599 
_ 1600-1699 
_ -- 1700-1799 
_x_ 1800-1899 
_x__ 1900-

Areas of Significance-Check and justify below 
____ archeology-prehistoric __ community planning 
__ archeology-historic ___ conservation 
__ agriculture ___ economics 
...X.. architecture ____ education 

. ___ landscape architecture _____ religion 
_ __ law __ science 
__ .. literature ___ sculpture 
____ military ___ social 

_____ art _ . engineering ___ music humanitarian 
_ _ theater __ commerce 

__ communications 
. ___ exploration ·settlement __ philosophy 
.. _ . industry ___ politics1government 
__ _ invention 

_x___ transportation 
_ other (specify) 

----·-· ·---- . -·- ---- ----------------
Specific dates c.1840-1935 ____ _ __ !u~~~~riArchit_e!~-- (see _inventory) _ _ ___ _ 

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph) 

The Townsend Historic District is significant as an important nineteenth century 
railroad transportation center and for its well-preserved architecture that mirrors the 
town's late nineteenth century prosperity and its transition into the twentieth century. 
Originating as a rural crossroads, Townsend began to grow as a clustered community after 
the Delaware Railroad Company opened its line in 1856 and established a station there. 
The Delaware Railroad, which traversed the length of the state, was built to provide a 
means of transporting agricultural products and natural resources to northern markets. 
In Townsend, as in several other communities along the line, the railroad station 
attracted the business of the surrounding landowners who realized increased profits by 
using rail transportation, as well as the laboring class who found employment with the 
railroad itself, and with the newly prosperous farmers and orchard growers. When major 
automobile transportation routes bypassed Townsend in the twentieth century, its growth 
slowed considerably. However, the railroad, and its associated businesses and 
industries remained the focus of activity until rail service was drastically cut back in 
the 1950' s. Be.cause Townsend's development is so closely linked to the history of the 
Delaware Railroad, a transportation system that had a major impact on the economy of the 
state, the Townsend Historic District is being nominated to the National Register on the 
basis of Criterion A. The buildings that comprise Townsend display significant 
development from circa 1840, when several of the early, pre-railroad buildings were 
constructed, through circa 1935 when bungalow and Colonial Revival styles began to 
appear. An important concentration of late nineteenth and early twentieth century 
residences, and a well-preserved commercial block are what define the stylistic 
character of the town. For these reasons the Townsend Historic District is also being 
nominated to the National Register on the basis of Criterion C. 

Immanuel M. E. Church and Parsonage (.57) and an adjacent vacant lot are included 
in this nomination as exceptions to the rule that does not allow properties owned by 
religious institutions to be considered eligible for the National Register. The church 
and parsonage are an integral part of the District and are significant primarily for 
their architectural importance. The vacant lot lies between the church and a 
neighboring residence that is a contributing element of the District. 

Townsend was one of the principal stations on the Delaware Railroad during the 
second half of the nineteenth century. When the railroad first opened its line in 1856 
little more than a store and a few houses stood within the vicinity of the crossroads, 
According to local legend, the first buildings that were erected within the limits of 
what was to become Townsend were a few small dwellings occupied by Black families. 
Within the neighborhood the settlement is said to have been called Charley Town after 
one of its residents, Charles Lloyd. The formal name for the tract was L~ncaster, and 
it ~'cS known by that name until 1856 when it was necessary to name the newly established 
railroad station. It was decided to name it Townsend, after Samuel Townsend, the major 
landowner in the area. 
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Preface. 

This paper is dedicated to the many friends and citizens of 

Townsend who shared their memories with the writer of this 

~aper and is a memorial to the One Hundredth Anniversary 

of the town. 



1. See appendix for further in.formation copcerning this 

oldest house in Townsend. The article is entitled 

"Historic Townsend House Has Checkered Background" 

and was .written by William. P. Wilson. November, lj3S. 

2. Harvey Cochran Baun~ A Postal HistorJ of- Delaware. 

Wilmington, lC;38, page Y-5~ 

3. Memories of many of the present day citizens who recall 

their parents speaking of the town as bieng called 

Huckleberry Swamp. 

4. Ibid. as 2. page 



5. Delaware Republican, published in Wilmington in 3rd

street between Market and King Streets. Ju]..y 19, 1858.

page 1.

6. This information was presented by HoNard Townsend a

grandson of Samuel Townsend for whom the town was named.



7. Ibid. as 5, colwnn 1. 

8. Inforfilation obtained from Ralph Wilson present secretary 

of the Delaware Railroad. April 1g51. Dover, Delaware. 

• 



The Histor:y of Townsend, Delaware. 

Townsend is located in Appoquini.mink Hundred, New 

Castle County, Delaware. A.ppoquinimink Hundred was orig­

inally that portion of New Cast1e County lying between 

A.ppoquinimink and Duck Creeks. Scharf in his History of 

Delaware sa:ys that "mention is made of the territory as a 

hundred in a . deed bearing date January 15, 1708, from 

William. Grant, of "Appoquinimini" Hundred to John Demar­

cier." The meaning of the word Appoquinimink is still to 

be determined, Scharf thought Appoquinimink to mean" 

wounded duck" , George Johnson who wrote the History of 

Cecil County derived the name from apokwe, a Seminole 

word meaning "settlement" and nemen, "to see". A. more 

recent study of the word, Appoquinimink, by C.A. Wesla­

ger and A.R.Dunlap, in their book, Indian Place Nam.es in 

Delaware,suggests that the first element ma;y be~' a 

shortening of mattappu, "he sits. down", with possible 

reference to, the end of the port,age between Bohemia 

River and Appoquinimink Creek. 

B;y an act of the legislature, passed :March 9, 1875, 

this land was divided into two hundreds, the northern part 

retaining the name Appoouinimink, and the southern part, 

Blackbird, after the stream which forms its southern 

boundary. The present Appoquinim.ink Hundred is bounded on 



2. 

the north by St. Georges Creek and Hundred, on the south 

by Blackbird Creek and Hundred, on 'the west by Maryland, 

and on the east by the Delaware River. In the present 

hundred, Townsend is the only town and is therefore the 

business,social, and political center of the area. 

Previous to 1850 the only buildings within the 

present limits of the town were a frame dwelling at thenorth end of 

Townsend, believed to have stood for a hundred years 

previous to this time,1 • and ~wo or three huts occupied 

bs Negroes. The most noted of these Negroes was Charles 
2. 

Lloyd, after whom the village was called Charley Town. 

The town at this time was merely a crossroads and because­

of the low swampy area and the dense growth of huckle­

berry bushes, the town was called Huckleberry Swamp by 
7J1 

many of the later inhabitants. 

Th~ Delaware Railroad was opened from Wilmington to 

Middletown in 1855. After some dispute the Railroad Comp­

any was given authority to come through Charley Town, and 

in 1856 the Delaware Railroad was comlpeted from Middletown 

to Delmar.4 • It was said that Samuel Townsend the largest 

landowner in the area was opposed to the railroad, but he 

defended himself several years later in a local newspaper, 

The Delaware Republican,thus: 



Townsend July 13, 1858 

.Mr. Edi tor: 

In that old lying Gazette of last Friday, 

C.P.Johnson says the reason why I sto.pped 

my p~per several Jears ago was, that he 

favored the Delaware Railroad, and that 

I was opposed to it, and stopped my paper 

because he would not oppose it also. 

Now, a feN words in justification of 

myself. Simce the proposition to make 

the railroad from Dover to Seaford was 

abandoned and the present route adopted, 

I have never opposed the road, which is 

very well known to those whose business 

it is to know. 

Since the railroad has been finished, 

I have fre.ighted on it everJ bushel of 

grain I had to sell, and every bushel 

of lime I have used, besides other 

freight. I have in addition, planted out 

in the last two years, nearly nine thous­

and peach trees, and calculate to plan~ 

out five thousand more next spring; and 

when they come into bearing, every basket 

of theJ, I expect to send .up on the road; 
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and if all my present and future 

preparations to put freight on the 

Delµware Railroad make me an enemy 

to it, I think it likely the Company 

would like to have a few more 

enemies of the same sort. 

Samuel Townsend 
5. 

With the coming of the railroad to Charley Town a 

town was laid out, lots sold, and houses built. It was 

necessary to do a lot of grading and filling in of 

ravines; these ravines had to be filled in before the 

railroad could come through Townsend. One of these deep 

ravines was located one mile north of Townsend at what 

is now called the "Pines" • Th.is ravine,it is said, was 

filled in by a small horse cart. It was necessary that 

wooden structure be built over the stream which passed 

from Harmon's Pond to Noxentown Pond. A single track was 

all that was built at first through the town. 6 • 

The following is a Delaware Railroad schedule of 

1858: 

Delaware Railroad Schedule 

Swnmer Arrangement- 1858 

On and after Monday,June 21st, 1858, 

trains for the. accoID1I!lodations of 

pass engers will run as follows: 



5. 

Seaford to Philadelphia 

Leave Seaford 6:25 A.M. and 2:00 P.M. 

Leave Townsend 8:45 A.M. and 6:15 P.M. 

Arrive Wilmington 10 :1,0 A.M. · and 8:40 .P.M. 

Arrive Philadelphia il:40 A.M. and 10:15 P.M. 

Leave Philadelphia B ·: 00 A. M. and 4 : 30 P. M •· 

Arrive Townsend 11:38 A.M. and 7:30 P.M. 

The evening trains North and the morning trains 

South are freight trains with passengers cars 

attached. 

Passengers leaving any point on the Delaware 

Railroad by morning trains going north, can 

have nearly five hours in Philadelphia and 

return same evening. 

E. Q. Sewall Jr. 

Supt. Delaware R.R. 
7 • . 

On January 26, 1859, an act was passed by the state 

legislature to provide the sum of five thousand dollars 

for the building of a storehouse, a ticket office and 

water tank at Townsend.
8

• This station was built near the 

present home of Daisy Johnson and the home of Elsie 

Schwatka on Harmon 1 2 B.oad. Among the station agents at 

the old station were rtufus Jones and William Reynolds. 



~. Information obtained from Karalene Carpenter who 

remembers her mother speak of her childhood days 

when such guests were brought to her parents . home. 

10. Information obtained from J. Taney Wilcox, seoretar~ 

of the Pennsylvania Railroad Company. April 5, 1'15-1. 



6. 

The coming of the railroad through Charley Town 

determined the present name of the town. The railroad 

atop had to be given a name, and, as usually happens, 

many suggestions were proposed. The two prominent names 

suggested were Lancaster, which was the original name of 

tract of land, and Townsend, after the man who had granted ~ 

the land for the railroad. Townsend was finally agreed 

upon in respect to the man who had allowed the railroad 

to be . built through the· community. 

When the railroad was completed,everyone in the com­

munity came to see the first train pass through the town. 

With the coming of the railroad,many strangers came to 

spend the night in Townsend: for example salesman going 

on to the ;,;aryland com.munities and needing to hire 

carriages to take them on their travels, would have to 

have overnight lodging if they arrived in Townsend in 

the evening. These people would be taken to the homes of 

the townsmen for overnight lodging. Many wives of the 

hospitable men would often wonder where they would place 

the next guest. 9 • 

In December 1866, a branch of the railroad was 

begun from. Towns end to Nias.sey, iiiaryland. This road did 

not at first connect with the Queen Anne and Kent R.R.'s. 

It is believed that the branch road was built to ship 

logs and grain from the vicinity of Van Dyke. This branch 
10. 

·road was completed to ~-~asse;y, iJar)'land in 1869. The 



11. Memories of James L. and Estella Dickinson. March l~Sl. 
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road consists of 4.17 miles in Maryland and 

5.09 miles in Delaware, making a total of 9.35 miles. 

This branch road became known as the Queen Anne and Kent 

Railroad. Townsend after this became an important 

railroad junction. Grain, peaches and lumber were among 

the many types of freight which were shipped from this 

town. It is said that the platform would be crowded with 

passengers between the change of trains at Townsend for 

Chestertown or Centreville or other Maryland communities 

on this line. With the coming of the junction,it was 

necessary to build or erect a turntable for the trains 

coming from the Maryland line.This turntable was erected 

and the engine was turned around by hand and headed back 

toward MarJland as the trains onl;y went as far as Townsend, 

where it was necessa~y to change trains for Wilmingt9n or 

other ·north2rn points and for the southern points on the 

peninsula. Everyone would walk down to the station in the 

evening to meet the eight o'clock train to mingle in the 

crowd and to see who would .arrive. 
11

• 
In 1902 or 1903 a double track was built -throiighi )( 

the town. About this time the present railroad station 

was built at Townsend on the opposite side from the old 

station. William Reynolds and Richard Hodgson were among 

the first agents in the new station. The water tank and 

turntable were done away with in later yeaBs and a Y-
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track was built so that the trains could back around and 

then head back to Massey in this mann.er. 

Watch.men have served at the crossings. in the town ... 

since the beginning of the railroad. Harvey Naylor, one of 

watchmen at the crossing stated during his service that a 

train passed through Townsend every ten minutes during the 

peak of the produce season. 

The railroad station was used at election time for 

receiving national election returns over the telegraph. 

The politicans sat in the station and stood around it to 

get the ·election returns: for example one resident remembers 

especially .the election of Mc Kinley. 

For many years a telegraph office was located below 

the station. At this place trains were gi~en the right to 

proceed to the next town or to halt. This system has been 

replaced by automatic lights which show whether a train is 

in a certain block or not. Edward Reynolds, Roland Reynolds, 

and William were among the employees at this telegraph office. 

Toda;y the Mar;yland railroad passenger service has been 

discontinued, and only about one train stops in Townsend for 

passengers a day. Mail is delivered to the town b~ truck 

except what mail is discharged by express trains. Most of the 

freight is shipped to Townsend by truck except for some car 

loads of grain and coal which come by railroad. Practically 
-

nothing is shipped from the town b) rail. ~ravelers find it 



12. B8"is of Delaware 1885. AN ACT TO INCORPORATE THE TOWN OF & 
TOWNSEND. April 3,1885. For complete data see appendix B.T 



necessary to go by car or walk to Ginn's Corner and 

take the Red Star Coaches. 
TodaJ the town has many former railroad employees 

as its citizens a fact which proves the importance of 

the town as. a railroad center during early years. 

The village grew rapidly after the coming of the 

railroad, and on April 3, 1885, was incorporated as a 

town. The incorporators were Eli C. Welsh, George M.D. Har, 

James T. Taylor, Daniel B. MaloneJ, and Albert Lynam, who 

were instructed to secure the services of a skillful 

surveyor and to survey and l.ay down on a plot the town of 

Townsend in New Castle County, and to lay out the streets, 

h . h th d"d d. 1 12 • w ic ey i accor ing y. 

Other com.mis2ioners are given by Scharf for the years 

1886 and 1887. They are David Wells, Thomas Bratton, John 

W. Naudain and John Towns~nd. Later town commissioners 

who served from around 1S27 to the present day were 

Walter Gill, Richard Hodgson, M. B. Donmvan, C. A. Greenwood, 

James A. Hart, William A. Scott, William P. Wilson, Walter 

Lee, Daisy W. Johnson, Fletcher Daniels, and Wilson M~ney. 

The collectors of town truces from 1929 to the present 

day have been Mrs. James Carpenter, Irving B. Hart, and 

Ethelwyn J. Maloney, who is the present collector. 



13. Laws of Delaware, February 21, -1929. See appendix C. 
Complete act is quoted there. 

14. Minutes of the Town of Townsend, 1929-1~46. 
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In 1929 an act was passed to authorize the commissioners 

of the town to borrow money and issue bonds for the purpose 

of supplying the town with water for the purpose of fire 

protection and personal use. The commissioners were author­

ized to borrow up to §15,000 for the purpose of installing, 

constructing and erecting such work and apparatus as might 
1~. 

be necessary. The contract was given to George and Lynch 

Company who were the low bidders. A large water tank was 

· erected and water mains laid. The cost of having ~ater 

connected to one 1 s home was ten dollars. The principal on 

the bonds issued for the installing of water could not be 

paid 30 years and it has been necessary to pay the interest 

on these bonds since 1929. The water lines even go beyond 

the town limits and many citizens are supplied with water 

who do not havA to pay any town property tax. Tfiis policy 

has been condemned by many of the residents but has never 
14. 

been remedied. 

Delaware Power and Light Company brought electricity 

to the town around 1921 and still provides the town with 

it. The rate for the street lights has been lowered from 

time to time since the electric power was first installed. 

The town previous to this period was lighted by oil lamps 

placed on lamp posts. These lights were lighted each night 

and then put out in the morning. The la:i:plighter received 

fiftJ cents a night for his services being paid by the 



15. Memories of Oscar Lockerman and others. 
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town board. The lam.plighter carried a small stool in one 

hand and in~the other hand an oil can. Some of the men 

who were lamplighters were Frank Wells, William. Wells, and 
15. 

Kenneth Watts who was the last lam.plighter. 

The town commissioners meetings are held several 

times during the year to pa~ all bills and to he?X any 

complaints from the citizens of the town and also to 

grant special privileges • 'For example, when the Negro 

campmeeting was held in town, it was necessary for the 

minister to ask for permission to have the portion of the 

street near the church roped off. This permission was granted 

by the town commissioners. The town board appoints a health 

board to care for sanitary conditions in the town. Some of 

the members of the health committee were Dr. J. D. Niles, 

John W. Guessferd, John A. Lynam, Edward Daniels,and Mabel 

Harmon. Among the other duties of town coffiillissioners are the 

care and upkeep of the streets, the connecting of water to 

the various homes, and provision for the protection of the 

citizens from disturbances and nuisances as well as consid­

eration for the general improvem~nt of the town. 

The Industries and Businesses of Townsend 1851-1S51. 

The first general merchandise store was opened by 

Levi Wesley Lattomus, having moved to the town from 

Fieldsboro a nearby communitJ. The store opened around 

1851 was a tJ})ical country store, having for sale clothes, 

hardware, and novelties as well as groceries and produce. 
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The store at the southeast corner of Commerce and Main 

Streets, was two stories high; the second story being 

used mostly for storage. By the 1870's the store was doing 

a most prosperous business. One of the local residents has 

said that on Saturaday evenings the town would be full of 

horse teams and carriages. All the stores had carriage sheds 

which were used for hitching the horses; hitching posts were 

also located all over the town. On Saturday evening every 

available space was filled with carriages, and it was often 

necessary . for the people tp hitch their horses to the back 

wheels of other carriages. 

People did not go to Middletown or other comm.unities 

to do their dealing or shopping as the other towns did not 

have any more to offer than Townsend. The Lattomus store 

employed nine clerks to take care of the sales. When twevle 

o'clock arrived,the tired clerks would start putting out the 

lights and telling the people to get out of thestore. With the 

coIDJiillg of the railroad in 1856, Levi Lattomus was na~ed 

postmaster and the general store also housed the first Post 

Office. In the winter in the early Jears of the town, the men 

gathered around the stove in the store and smoked and chewed 

tobacco, while theJ discussed the current topics of the daJ. 

This custom is not uncommon today. Some of the hitching posts 

are still standing on the west side of the store, and it is 

not an uncommon sight now to see sev2 ral teams hitched to the 

posts on SatirdaJ aft ~rnoons. 
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The store was operated by the Lattomus familJ for 

over 75 years. Since the late 1½20 1 s the store has been 

operated by Robert Morgan, Clarence P. Donovan, Huey Graham, 

and several others, and today it is owned by Albert Buckworth, 

who operates a freezer locker plant in the rear of the store 

the only such plant in this locality; the grocery store is 

operated by Edward Walker. 

Another store of general merchandise was built by 

William Scott, and its characteristics were similar to the 

Lattomus store. This store which also had living accomodations 

was located on the northeast corner of Commerce and Main Streets 

and was destroyed by fire. Another store was built in its place 

and after this the store was operated by Joseph C. Hutchison, 

a man named De Valinger, Nilliam Money, Thoma.s Lattomus, Hart 

Wright Hart, Clarence Greenwood, and is now owned and operated 

by Leslie F. Smith,who conducts a modern self-service store. 

A third store was operated b:y Edward Graves on the north­

west corner of Commerce and Ivlain Streets in the prasent building 

operated by Bthel O. Reynolds. Later EDward Graves built a new 

store and. home onthc corner of Taylor and Main Streets and 

conducted his business there. This business was later operated 

by Edward Lurty. The store is no longer in operation,but ~eorge 

Lurty operates a pool room in the original store. 

The store which Edward Grav~s first operated was later 

operated by a Jewish family. Then the store became a drugstore 

operated b;y Dar. J. Niles and Rufus Jones. This store is now 
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operated by Ethel O. Reynolds, who has been in business for 

twenty-five years. Mrs. Reynolds is the only woman in Townsend 

who_ has operated her own business for this period of time. She 

has also been active in politics,in the Women's Christian 

Temperance Union, in the Parent-Teachers Association, Red Cross, 

brought the Chataugua to Townsend, and is also one of the local 

correspondents for the Middletown Transcript and the Wilmington 

newspapers. The Reynolds store sells general merchandise, 

patent medicines, gifts, magazines, newspapers, and the~re is 

also -a soda fountain and lunch counter within the store. 

A confe~tionery store was operated by John Rittenhouse 

near the old railroad station on Harmon's Road. This store was 

within the Rittenhouse home; the store being operated for the 

· convenience of railroad passengers. This store was later operated 

by William Garton, Bayard Schwatka, and Isacc Weiner, and -was last 

operated by James Guessford. The st~re is no longer in operation 

and was operated within the present home of Elsie Schwatka on 

Harmon's Road. 

A baker;)' and grocery store was operated b:y Thomas Bratton 

for a short time on the southwest corner of South and Main Streets. 

This was the first bakery in Townsend. Later this dwelling became 

a printing office and home operated by Evans Moffett. Today the 

present dwelling is the home of Joseph Hutchison Jr. whose wife 

operates the onl;y beaut:y shoppe in Townsend from her home. 



16. Memories of the citizens of Townsend. 

17~ John Thomas Scharf, History of Delaware, volume .l.. 

page /tJ ~ 2. . 
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Another bakery was operated by a man named Venn, who 

did his own baking, and later by William Lynam and was last 

operated by Samuel Watts. This bakery was located on South 

Street. Henry Mc Monigal was the .baker for William. Lynam. 

He was known as "Henry the baker". After he retired from his 

occupation, he became a "wayfarer". Among the baked. goods sold 

were sugar cakes, ginger cakes, drop cookies, cinnamon buns, and 

white bread and rolls. The children coming from school would 

stop in at the bakery and buy penny sugar cookies. The baked 

goods was baked in a large brick oven. Among the other bakers 
16. 

was a man named Fred Conure. 

A drugstore was operated by John Lattomus next to the 

Lattomus store. ii:1r. Lattomus carried all types of .medicines 

and filled prescriptions issued by the few doctors. The store 

it is said was piled high with cartons and urns of medicine. 

This early drugstore provided the medical needs for many 

peopple who could not afford the care of a doctor, being 

patronized by both Negro and white. 

Hotels. 

"The first hotel in Townsendwas erected about 1857 

by Abraham Ingram.. It was first occupied by Joseph T. Hill. 

The propert~y was afterwards owned b;y Nilliam .Scott and Levi 

'II. Lattomus." 17 · Levi W. Latto::nus operated the hotel around 

1865. The hotel was later convert~d into,a dwelling and has 

housed many occupants. Toda) the dwelling is the ngme·of Mrs. 

,',alt er 1-ione;) . 
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Another hotel was built by Samuel Townsend. Before this 

hotel was built, the travelers who had to spend the night at 

Townsend between trains had been lodged at the Townsend home. 

Mr. Townsend,knowing the need for a hotel built one on the 

corner of Main Street and Harmon's Road. The hotel was first 

contained a restaurant and was operated by James C. Townsend 

about 1870. It was operated by several proprietors and was 

bought by James L. Dickinson Sr. aroun~ 1886. This hmtel was 

known as the "Townsend Hotel 11 and had as· its motto, "A First 

Class House in all its Appointments." Along with the hotel, 

Mr. Dickinson had horses and carriages to hire or exchange. 

Within the hotel was a bar and near the hotel a pool room. 

The ~otel burned in 1925 and the property was sold to Thomas 

Lattomus. The builfiing was later built into apartments and 

the_·first floor was used as a drugstore by J eroIIle Niles and 

Rufus Jones, who moved from the present Reynolds store. 

William c. · Deakyne later operated the drug and confectionery 

store until his death. Dr. Claude Keith had a doctor's office 

in the rear of the store during the Deakyne management of the 

store. The store has since been IT1anaged by Ethelwyn Maloney, 

Rena Hart, Calvin Jones, Willard Laird, and is now operated 

by a man DaIIied Hillis, who sells confectioneries, patent 

medicines, toliet articles, magazines, and gifts. The store 

around 1942 housed the first youth center in Townsend which. 

was operated bJ the Townsend Methodist Youth Fellowship. 
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Hardware Store and Lumber rard. 

The first hardware store in Townsend was operated by 

Thomas Mal.oney, whose brother, Daniel B. Malone;y operated a 

lumber- yard near the hardware store. The hardware store and 

lumber yard after the death of Thomas Maloney were both operated 

for .some ti.me by Daniel B. Maloney. Walter Gill owned the store 

afeer this, and at his death it was so·ld to Darwin Beardsley, 

who is the present'owmer of the hardware store and lumber yard. 

The hardware store is us.ed as a gathering place by the farmers 

in the mornings, and here they smoke and talk about the daily 

events. In the summer the men can be found sitting on nail 

kegs in front of the store. 

Thomas Maloney, for whom the store was built,is 

remembered by the children of the day for his sunny and 

cheerful disposition. When they would be sent to the hardware 

store,for ten penny nails, he would sing while he would wait 

on the customer: "ten penny, ten penny, ten penn;y, ten _penny. 11 

The watchmaker and jeweler of the town was Lemuel B. 

Shockley, who operated his business on east Main Street. Mr. 

Shockley repaired clocks and watches and sold rings and other 
a jeweler 

jewelry. When Mr. Shockley died he had been/in Townsen~ for 

about fifty years. The town hasn 1 t had a jeweler since his 

death. 
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Blacksmith and wheelwright shops have been_operated in 

Townsend by Daniel B. Maloney, Israel Pritchard, and later by 

his son Joseph Pritchard. In the same shop Ermour Quillen was 

wheelwright. _This shop was located between the Pritchard home 

and the home of Milton Hart on Main Street. Another shop was 

operated on the south end of South Street bu Webb and 

Charles Schwatka. Another blacksmith and wheelwright shop 

was operated by George Stant and Charles Wells on West Main 

Street. 

The last of the blacksmiths in Townsend were Lynch 

Watts and George Biddle, bot~ having shops on the south end 

of South Street. The blacksmiths and wheelwrights shod horses, 

cut carriage and wagon rims or tires.as they were then called, 

did welding work, and built dearborn bodies and wagon bodies. 

There were many blacksmiths in Townsend during the horse and 

bugg;y era. 

Peach Industry. 

The peach industry flourished in this area fro:fi 1860 

until around 1890. Samuel Townsend was known as the "Peach 

King o:d Delaware" because of the great number of peaches he 

shipped from Townsend to Philadelphia, Boston, and New York. 

In the Delaware Republican, a Delaware newspaper printed in 

Wilmington, i:.r.r. Townsend, mentioned the number of peach trees 

he had planted(this was printed in 1858): "I have planted out 

in the last two years, nearly nine thousand peach trees, and 

calculate to plant out five thousand more next spring. 11 17 • 
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I~ was customary for a buyer to come down from the large cities 

and buy the peach grower's enti~e crop. Then they would grade 

the p.eaches and sh.tip them to the large cities. 

According to an account written in_ 1888,"Ap_pleton and 

Hart erected a frame building twenty four by forty feet, on the 

corner of Commerce and Gray Streets, in 1882. They fitted it up 

with two evaporators and commenced evaporating peaches. In 1884 

Appleton sold his share to Hart, who enlarged the size and capacity 

of the ~anufactory. The present capacity is eight hundred baskets 

per day. The evaporating season lasts six weeks per Jear and 

during this permod gives employment to one hundred operatives. 

George M .D. Hart ships the fruit :principally to New York and 

Philadelphia." lB. 

The peaches were picked and hauled to the grader and there 

graded. The larger peaches were placed in ha~ers, while the 

small peaches were kept and dried at Townsend. Some of the peaches 

were peeled and seeded; others were merely seeded. The employees 

were paid five cents a basket for cutting the peaches in half 

and taking the seeds out, and ten cents a basket for peeling and 

seeding the _peaches. The inhabitants of the town would ggther up 

the seeds, and dry them and use them for fuel in the winter. The 

employees were white people. The only attention given the peach 

trees was ploughing and working between the peach rows; spraJing 

was not necessarJ. 
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After the peach tr~es became diseased and died out, the 

farmers in the neighborhood of Townsend planted pear and apple 

orchards. The Keifer pear became the outstanding fruit in the 

vicini.ty of Townsend. Walter Hart bought the pears for about 

fifteen cents a basket. These·pears were emptied into box cars 

and shipped to miners in .Pennsylvania. Some of the better pears 

were packed and shipped to Philadelphia-, placed in cold storage, 

and then brought out in the winter and sold. Many of them, however, 

did not stay firm and the buyers lost considerable on the pears. 

The pears did not prove very profitable, and soon the growers 

didn't bother to pick their pears for shipping. Some of tha pear 

trees are still bearing on hhe propert) of Howard Townsend, Wilmer 

Fennemore, and James L. Dickinson. The last of the apple orchards 

were those owned by John W. Derrickson and 'Rilliam C. Money. These 

man had many varieties of apples which bore at various intervals. 

Feed and Grain Stores. 

George M. D. Hart and son operated a feed, grain, and 

seed store on the northeast corner of Commerce and Main Streets 

and later erected a building between this store and Maloney 1 s 

lumber yard. Here the Harts added a coal yard. Mr. Hart special­

ized in seeds and later bought wheat and loaded it in box cars 

at Townsend. The Harts had the mo□ opol;y on seed and grain for 

many years and also sold lime ~o the farmers. One of the outst­

anding features of Hart's coal business was the coal box, which 

stood near the scales at Hart 1 s office: This coal box was one of 

the traditional landmarks of the town for man;y years. Nhile it 

was standing, one could always see someone sitting or sleeping 
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on the coal box both day or night. In fact, the top of the 

box wasvas smooth .as glass, having been worn down by so many 

people sitting on it. This coal box was used by all types and 

characters of people. When it was finally destroyed, the town 

lost a part of its individuality. 

Around 1904orl<j05 a feed store was operated by a Mr. 

Evans, who had a custom mill at Noxentown. This feed store 

was managed by Frank Spry. Mr. Evans purpose in having the 

store had Townsend was to exchange with the farmers grainnfor 

feed. This store was located at the north end of Harmon's Road 

and Main Street. 

The present day grain and feed storesare operated by 

Samuel Gunning, who has a feed and grain store on Commerce 

Street; Darwin Beardsley, who operates the former Hart store; 

and Fred Dolby and El.mer Case, who operate the Townsend Graim 

and Feed Company, which has recently been built near the railro_ad 

siding. This business has proved very prosperous, for feed is 

delivered for many miles ·around the vicinity _of Townsend. The 

Townsend Grain and Feed Company has started many people in the ." 

chicken business by furnishing the feed for them and sharing the 

profit with the owner of the chickens when they are sold. This 

company specializes in Purina Feeds. 

All of these feed and grain dealers grind and mix feed 

for the farmer and dairyman. However, grain is no longer bought 

and shipped by railroad. The feed and grain stores merely buy 

enough grain to supply th-::ir own needs. Large quanties of grain 

are now sold to grain dealers in Middleto~n or Smyrna. 



1 S. Ibid. as 17A page I? ·"' ·~-

20. Ibid. as 17A page , 0 ,,,. 1, · 
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The first grain.and feed mill stood one mile north of 

Townsend at what is now Harmon's Pond. "The earliest record 

of the mill is found on the assessment list of 1816, when 

it was the property of Joseph and Whitby, who was a large 

landowner in the vicinity of the mill. At his death the mill 

passed to his son, John, who operated it for sometime, before 

selling it to Garrett Ottison. It was afterwards owned by ---
Hunter, who sold it to --- Mc Daniel, by whmm it was repaired 

and generall~ improved. The mill was next owned by John Lewis 

--' and William Johnson, by whom it was conveyed to its present 

owner, I.A. Harmon. It is a two-story frame building. It is 
19. 

fitted up with burrs and grinds custom work exclusivel;y." 

This mill was run by water power. A large mill was located 

on the north end of the building. Harmon's MilI was later operated 

by George H. Wiggin and then William Moore, who was the 6Wner 

when the mill b~rned in the lat 1930's. Every pabp of it was 

destroyed except the large water wheel. 

Brick Yards. 

"In 1872 a brick yard was opened a short distance south 

of Townsend b;y Samuel R. Warren. It was operated for a year by 

him and then sold to Daniel B. Maloney, who owned the mill in 

1888. Bricks were manufactured here during six months of the 

;year and employment was given for that period to five men. 

About one hundred and seventy-£ive thousand bricks are 

manufactured annuall~. Samuel ~arren opened another brick yard 

on his farm in 1886. This yard gave employment to six men for 

six months in the year, and manufactured about two hundred 

h d " . 11 20. 
t ousan oricks annually. 



21. Memories of Karalene Carpenter whose father Edward Hart 

drove the wagon loads of bricks to the wharves. 
22. Ibid. as 17A page I J.,,J,J. 



Some bricks were used locally for chimmeys and 

foundations for homes in the vicinity of Townsend, but 

the larger per cent of the bricks were hauled by wag~n to 

Smyrna Landing, Blackbird Landing, or Cantwells Bridge 
21. 

(Odessa) and loaded mn boats and shipped to Philadelphia. 

Saw mills. 

"In 1883 Sam.uellR. Warren erected a saw mill on his 

premises in Appoquinimink Hundred. This he operated until 

1887, when he moved it to Sudlersville. It had a capacity of 

two thousand five hundred feet per day and gave employment to 

thirteen men. Merchant and custom work was executed." 
22

• 

Other saw mills were operated by Edward Hart, William 

Fortner, and Benjamin Lockerman who operated a saw mill near 

Dulaneys around 1881. The logs were hauled on two sets of cart 

wheels and the logs were chained to the cart wheels and then 

pulled by mules. Then the logs were hauled to the railroad 

siding and placed on flat cars and shipped by railroad. Present 

day dealers in logs are John Farrow, Clarence Pierson, and Leon 

Buckson. Today the logs are hauled by truck and are used for 

piling and telephone poles, while the softer wood,such as willow 

or popular, are used for gun powder, baskets and. hBJI1.pers, 

toothpicks, and wooden eating utensils. In form.er ;years the oak, 

walnut, and chesnut trRes were used for the making of furniture. 

?or local use posts were hewed out for fences and rafters were 

hewed for buildin;s. 
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residents ofthe town among these Daisy Wiggins Johnson~ 

William Money, and Oscar Lockerman. 
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Creameries. 

Captain and Mrs. George Wiggins had a creamery near 

the railroad at the present location of the. Supplee-Wills­

JRnes creamery. Mil~ was bought from the farmers and made 

into butter. When the farmers brought the milk to the creamerJ 

it was poured into a separator, from which the skim milk was 

separated from tneam~ illlitekskim milk went into a separate 

tank. Then •the . farmers would take the skim milk back to feed 

it to their hogs. The cream was made into butter and .shipped; 

milk could not be shipped because of the lack of refrigeration. 

This creamery was .burned and was not rebuilt. 

William H. Smitb., or "creamery Smith", as he was .called, 

had a creamery on Walnut Street. This creamery was similar to 

the Wiggins creamery and was later operated by William C. Money. 

Supplee built another creamery on the sight of the old Wiggins 

property and later in 1~14 bought out the cream.erJ originally 

owned by Smith. Milk from the Supplee creamery was at first 

shipped by cans in milk cars on the railroad and later in tank 

cars. These cars were loaded by a hose into the tank cars and 

shipped to Philadelphia. The milk was just cooled at this creamery. 

Now the milk is cooled and shipped by milk truck. Today the 

creamery is operated by Supplee-Wills-Jones. Dairy farming 

has become one of the outstanding means of financial gain in 

this area today. 
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Canneries. 

Hearn and Walls operated a tomato cannery in Townsend 

in 1902 or 1qo~. Four cents an hour was paid for labor, fifty 

cents a day for boys, one dollar and a quarter a day for men, 

and one and one-half cents was paid for each bucket of tomatoes 

peeled. A copper chehlc was given to the laborer after he or she 

had peeled a bucket of tomatoes. These copper and also fiber 

checks or discs were honored at the stores during the canning 

season; afterwards the company would cash in these discs • Many 

of the women kept tobacco sacks around their necks in which they 

would drop their discs. Both Negroes and whites worked in the 
24. 

cannery, and women as well as men. 

Later the cannery was run by Wri~ht and Company and 

Justwright and Company, and is now operated by the Phillips 

Canning Company. These later companies canned corn and peas, as 

well as tomatoes. Many of the people look forward to the canning 

season as it is verJ beneficial financially to many families of 

the community as most of the employees are local inhabitants. 

During World War Two, however, German war prisoners were used as 

laborin the cannerj,:..,[,These prisoners were brought from Fort Du Pont 

and were guarded by militar~ police. Today the sweet corn that is 

canned in Townsend is grown locally, but the peas are no longer 

grown in this area,and-:... are brought to Townsend from Pennsylvania 

to be canned. 
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Carpenters and Painters. 

The outstanding carpenters of the town were the members 

ofthe Wells family. Frank Wells, Benjamin Wells, Charles Wells, 

Albert Wells, and later William T. Wells, Charles Wells,Jr., 

Irving Wells and Albert Wells took up the carpenter trade. 

It is said by the older residents of the town that the Wells 

boys built practically every house in Townsend. They would built 

a home and live in it awhile thems.elves and then sall the home. 

The Wells' were very particu~ar, and many _tim.es instead of 

sending to the lumber yard for needed lumber would go them.selves 

and pick out the exact piece that they desired. Among the homes 

which they built were the Maloney and Lattomus homes, which are 
25. 

largest houses in Townsend today. 

Other carpenters were John H. Green and his son William 

D. Green, who did most of their work in neighboring towns. 

The outstanligg carpenters of the present~d~y are Oscar Biddle, 

George Burge and son, Welden, Thomson Beardsley, Allie ~ells, 

and Elwood David. 

Joseph Clayton, Jilliam Nay1or, and Thomas Naylor were 

outstanding exterior and interior painters. The painters today 

are William Garton, ~lmer Pritchard, John Naylor, and Elwood 

Graham, who do painting ou~side of Townsend as well as in town. 

PhJ'sicians. 

The first physician in Townsend was Dr. Thomas A. Enos. 

He was an..:~outstand.ing doctor, giviDg all his time to the sick. 

He thought onl;y of giving his servii.ce, and when he w_as called __ 

to the home o:f the poor, it is said that he would know their 
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£inancial status and would not bother to write down his fees. 

Dr. Enos traveled both day or night in his carriage ministering 

to the sick. When he died at the age of fifty-five, the citizens 

of the community erected a tombstone in his honor, as he had 

placed service above financial gain and died a penniless man. 

Other physicians of nearby communities ministered to 

the sick after the death of Dr. Enos. Dr. Francis Townsend, 

Dr. Money, Dr. Jerome D. Niles, and Dr. Claude Keith were all 

successors of Dr. Enos in Townsend. Dr. Niles is the only doctor 

within the town today. However, physicians from other towns 

visit the sick in Townsend when they need m~dical attention. 

Among these P#YSicians are Dorsey Lewis, ~alter H. Lee, Jerome 

Hoch, the later two having been home town boys, and Allan 

Cruchley all of Middletown; Dr. Claude Keith of Pinetree, and 

Drs. Pritchard and Lagener, both of Swyrna. 

Barbers. 

Haircutting was done in the home by the parents of the 

children. The older boys of the family would cut the youn~er 

boys' hair. Shaving was also done at home by using a straight 
-razor. Some of the men who wore long beaEds, were George Stant~ 

Israel Pritchard, John Atwell, Frank Lattomus, Nicholas Watts, 

and Stringer Finley. Barbar shops we;e located on the second 

floor over Malone~'s office, in James L. Dictinson's hotel, 

and later in the present location of the Guessferd barber shop 

on Main Street. George Bramble, a , ;r ;_,o dall Th -,, 11 _:, • ;, o , omas ;, e s , 

and Harry Stradley were some of the earl} barbers in Townsend. 
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Later barbers were Curtis Slaughter, Horace Van Horn, 

Kenneth Watts and John W. Guessferd. The only two barbers in 

. business in the town today are Watts and Guessferd. The Watts 

barber shop is located on the west end of Main Street across the 

railroad and the Guessferd shop is located on the east side of the 

railroad. 

Undertakers. 

Joseph Enos of Odessa was the first undertaker for this 

area. Sherbourne A. Collins was the first undertaker within the , 

town. Funerals were held in the homes or the churches as there 

were no funeral palors in the early daJs. Dinn~rs were always 

held after the funeral for the fun_eral guests. Funeral services 

consisted of singing and SBrmons and lasted a much longer time 

than those of the present day. There would usually be several 

ministers participating in the service. 

After the death of Mr. Collins ,G. Lester Da.niels, formerly 

an assistant to Sherbourne Collins,becam.e the undertaker~ Lester 

Daniels had the first funeral palor in Townsend and is still the 

undertaker, having palors both in Middletown and T·ownsend. 

Automobile and Farm Machinery Dealers. 

Around 1900 W. Harmon Reynolds was a dealer in Studebaker 

automobiles and farming impl~ments. This business was located 

on the corner of Commerce and Gra~ Streets where the peach 

dryer formerly stood. 

After the First Norld Nar, James A. Hart Jr. opened 

a garage at Gin.n's corner. ~r. Hart was a dealer in Ford cars 

and trucks and re~ained in business for about twenty years. 

The establishment which was previously ope.rated b;y 

},: . Harmon 3.e:ynolds is today operated by Ralph G. furies, a dealer 



in Massey Harris farm machinery, selling corn planters, 

combines, tractors, discs, and corn piakers~ Faries, who 

supplies many of the farmers in this vicinity with farm 

machinery also sells lime and fertilizers and Hoffman seeds. 

Ice Service. 

Howard Townsend and Sons operated an ice service in 

Townsend. Howard Townsend had two large ice houses at Harmon's 

Pond. In the winter he would take several teams,and cut the 

ice from the pond, and fill the two ice houses. Between each 

layer of ice his men would place straw, and more straw would be 

put along the s~des of the ice house. These houses were dug 

deep in the ground. The cracks between the pieces of ice would 

be filled with cracked ice. TheD,when it became necessary to 

use ice, the Townsends would load their wagon and peddle it 

around the town. While one wagon was being delivered, another 

was being filled to take to the stores in the town so the ice 

could be used for refrigeration for meat and produce. In more 

recent years ice has been served to the people of Townsen& by 

the Clayton Ice and Coal Company and now by the Diamond Ic.e and 
26. 

Coal Company. 

Shirt Factory. 

George M. Outten operated a shirt £actory in Townsend 

from 18'::i 7-1Sl7. The buildingwas erected for Mr. Outten b:y 

the citizens of the communitJ who desired that an industry 

be established in the town to employ those who needed work. 

'1!his manufacturing house had t.wo long tables which contained 

thirt) two sewing lliachines and manufactur~d women's dresses, 

infants ~arments, blouses, skirts, and so~e men's dress shi rts. 

These articles were then shipped to Phila ~elphia to various 



27. Information obtained through interviem with Ethel O. Reynolds 

the daughter of Geprge eutten who operated the establishment 

for her father. April, 1S51. 
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clothing stores. Mr. Outten's daughter Ethel, operated the 

business for her father after several years and had as her 

engineer Harvey Daniels. George Outten him.self was a teacher 

by profession and was the principal of the Townsend School for 

several years. Before coming to Townsend, he had been a 
27. 

Mathematics and French teacher in New York State. 

The manufacturing house was later opeirated by several 

other business.men and was then converted into a home and was later 

torn down. This factory was located at the south end of Taylor 

Street. 

Other Businesses. 

Among the other businesses of the town were the Townsend 

Roller Mill Company, operated by Lemuel Shockley and Levi 

Lattomus. This company made flour, corn meal, and cracked corn. 

This establishment was located at the north end of Walnut Street. 

The Horst Weather . Strip Company was a company operated 

by new comers to the community, but was financed locally.This 

business did not employ any outside help and soon was-~· d..iistontd.nued. 

Townsend has had a large varietJ of businesses and industries 

during its hundred years as a town, but today most of the citizens 

find it necessar;y to obtain employment in the nearby towns and 

cities. 



28. Histor-.v of Immanuel Methodist Church, Annamand.a Lattomus 
I 

Maloney. l':;102. See Appendix for complete history of church. 

2~. Information concerning cost of church etc • .from Ehhildywn 

Maloney's history.of the church which was added to the 

above,see note 28. 
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Social and Cultural Life of the Town. 

Churches. 

Previous to any church building in Townsend, services 

were held at Union Methodist Church just north of Blackbird 

on the Du Pont Highwa;y. Here the residents would go to attend 

the regular Sunday meetings and also the revival meetings and 

other special services throughout the year. Devotions were also 

held in the individual homes as part of the daily family life. 

''For a number of ;years prior to 1871 religious services were held 

in the little red frame school house. A society was formed: 

prayer and experience meetings were held and occassionally 

preaching services." 28
• In the summer of 1871 a meeting was 

called forthe purpose of electing a board of trustees to procure 

ground and to built a Methodist Episcmpal Dhurch. The building 

was completed in August 1871 and dedicated. From time to time 

the building was improved and enlarged. This building was in use 

until 1902, when at this time a new brick building was erected 

to take its place. This present church was built at a cost of 

tl2,600. A parsonage was erected near the church during the 

pastorate of Rev. Warren Burr, 1~13-1118, at a cost of §300~. 

The·'. ·church today has a membership of 228 members and a Sunda:y 

enrollment of 200. At the present time the church is looking 

forward to enlarging in the near future. In 1~46 a lovely 

Wicks electric organ and chimes ware dedicated to the church. 

The church is the center of religious activit:_y in the com.m.unity 

as it is only church in Townsend toda). 
2½. 



32. 

St. Mar;y's Episcopal Church was built around 1~01 on 

South Street in Townsend. Captain and Mrs; George Wiggins were 

responsible for organizing .and building the church. The church 

was dedicated b) Bishop Coleman of the Diocese o:f Delaware. A 

Mr. Wilkie served as the first rector, and later Rev. Percy 

Donohough who until the church was closed. The church was in 

use for about thirty years and then services were discontinued. 

The property was later sold and was remodeled into a home. Now 

the members of the Episcopal denomination attend the Episcopal 
30. 

churches in ~Jiiddletown or Smyrna. 

The .members of the Roman Catholic Faith attend services 

at the St. Joseph's Roman Catholic Church in Middletown. 

There is one Negro church in Townsend which is located 

on South Street. It is a rviethodist church and holds regular 

weekly services and each sumiller a campmeeting is held at thi$ 

church. This service is held in August and draws Negroes from 

all parts of the Delmarva Peninsula. The church is not very 

active at the present time, as most of the people attend the 

Methodist churches at Lee's Chapel, at Pinetree, or Ebernezer 

Church which is near Van Dske Station. 

The Negro campmeetings were great occasions for the 

blacks. They would have large wagons filled with straw and 

the wagons would be drawn by four horses to take the people 

to the campmeetings. Late at night they returned singing the 

hymns of the church. Similar campmeetings are held today and 

the Negroes especiall~~Qook forward to attendin~ the large 

Big -r.t.uarterl:y in vVilmington, which has been a tradition throughout 

ctJ:re·- tie ar s . 
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Schools. 

The land for the first white school in Townsend was given 

by Samuel Townsend and. the school was built on the southwest 

corner of ~ray and South Streets. This school was a little 

one-room. red school building. This little red school was :sold 

in 1883 to James L. Dickinson who moved the building to his 

premises. In 1883 the school com.missioners erected a new two­

stor~ frame buildin~. The upper floor was used as a public 

hall and for exhibition of the school. The lowerestory was 

divided into two commodious rooms for school purposes. Samuel 
- 31. 

Tyson was the principal. 

In 1~17 the legislature appropriated three thousand 

dollars for the erection of a two-storJ school building which 

contained four class rooms on the first floor and two clas:s 

rooms on the second floor as well as an auditorium. Today 

the building has been remodeled into a firehall. 

In 1~32 a new school was built just outside of the town 

limits on thei:-property of Walter Hart. Tha school i<s3a large 
-
brick building containing six class rooms, a large auditorium 

and stage, and a kitchen. Along with the new building was a 

large playground whicij was an advantage this school held over 

the old school. A.K. Ratledge was the principal of the new school 

and also served as the teacher of English and Mathematics. Other 

teachers were Catherine Bradley, iv1adeline iv:anlove, Evel;yn Re;ynolds, 

miriam Douglas, and Josephine Pritchard. Since the school opened, 



34. 

two additional teachers have been added to the teaching staff. 

At the present time there are two additional rooms and a cafeteria 

being added to the school. These rooms will be ready for occupancy 

in September 1S51. The present teaching staff consists of a Mr. 

Kemp, principal. Mrs.~line Cook, Beatrice Goldsborough, Mrs. Carl 

Reynolds, Mrs. Fennemore Douglas, Virginia Herbst, Arie Hill, and 

a .Mrs. Moore. 

The trustees of the new school were Walter Haxt, Burton 

Donovan, iVilliam Money, and Walter Lee. Later James L. Dickinson 

and Wilmer·Fennemore replaced the deceased trustees, falter Hart 

and Burton Donovan. The present trustees are Winfield Cochran, 

Walter Lee, Wilmer Fennemore, and William Carey. 

One of the Townsend School traditions dating from tbe 

early school when twevle grades WP-re tauf.ht is the ·Baccalaureate 

and Graduation Exercises, still held for the present eight-grade 

school as for the earlier twevle - grade school.A pageant or 

operetta was previously held each year at commencement exercises 

by members of the eighth grade. Complete graduation exercises with 

the presentation of dipolmas are conducted each June~ The graduating 

class then begings its ninth -year at Middletown High School • ..t!;ach 

graduate has a flower bo~ or girl who carries a basket of flowers 

to the graduate at the close of the exercises. This is a very 

colorful scene and the oceasion is looked forward to by each new 

graduating class. 
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There is a small Negro one-room school in Townsend which 

has six grades. After finishing the sixth grade, the pupils go 

to Middletown to the junior high school and then by bus tc Dover 

to the high school. Previous to the building of the preseIDt 

brick building, the school stood near the Negro church in 

Townsend. This was a frame building and was later used as a 

blacksmith shop by George Biddle. 

Post Office. 

"The first _post office in Townsend was established on 

August 13,1856, Levi W. Lattomus, a prominent figure in 

developing the town was made the first postmaster. 1132 • 

The _post office was located .:j..n the Lattomus store ."Levi ~v. 
Lattomus was succeeded by James C. Wilson and John S. Vvilson, 

and 'J/illiam Scott was appointed October 1, 1885. 1133 • Later 

postmasters were Thomas Lattomus, William Mone:y, Joseph Hutchison, 

Blanche Hutchison, and Ethel Reynolds, and the present post 

mistress is Edna Conner. Mail from Towns end is served in a.lmost 

all of Appoquinimink and Blackbird Hundreds of New Castle County. 

The rural mail carriers today are Oscar Lockerman and Brad.ford 

Naylor, and their suastitutes are Carl Reynolds and Fletcher 

Daniels. Former mail carriers were Howard Townsend and Har,old 

Outten. 

Fire Company. 

Before aifireocompany was organized it was necessarJ to 

fight fires by the bucket brigade. A{ter the coming of the railroad. 

there has been times when a railroad en~ine in the town carried 

water to help fight fires near the railroad. Later man-drawm 

fire wagons were used. In l';.,27 the 'Townsend .Fire Compan;y was 

incorporated; from this time on Townsend has had fire-£ighicing 
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equipment. The fire engine was first housed in a garage in back 

of Bayard S~hwatka's b..u>me. When the new school was built, the old 

school building was bought by the fire company to be used for their 

equipment and to be used as a community hall. Toda~ the volunteer 

fire company is very active and is always on the job in case of 

fire. In 1q50 a ladies auxiliary to the fire company was organized 

to be of service to the firemen and to the victims of fire. Both 

organizations are members of the state and county firemens' 

organizations. The volunteer fire company has saved.many homes 

from complete destruction. 

Trust Company. 

Townsend Trust Company was incorporated in 1Sl8. Thomas 

Lattomus was the first president and served until his death 

in 1½37. Walter Lee succeeded Thomas Lattomus as president 

and is the present president of the Townsend Trust Company. 

Loan Association. 

"The Mutual Loan Association of Townsend,Delaware was 

organized in February 1883. The first officers of the association 

were: President, John F. Staats; Vice-President, William. R. 

Ivi.artin; Secretary and Treasurer, Nilliam A. Scott. Directors: 

John F. Staats, William R. Martin, George M.D. Rart, D.B. Maloney, 

Thomas MaloneJ, George L. Townsend, Samuel R. /Jarren, Dr. J .V. 

Crawford, T.A. Enos. In 1886 GeorgeL .. Townsend succeeded William 

R. Martin as vice-president, L.V. Aspril Jr., and George W. Van 

Dyke were directors in the place of Ma~tin and Crawford." 34 • 



37. 

The preceding account was taken from Scharf's HistorJ 

of Delaware and was presented as it is the ~nly account 

which was available at this time concerning the history of the 

loan association. The Mutual Loan Association is still in 

exietence and has proved one of the best means of investing 

money. Its influence is felt in the growth of the town. The 

present Illllme of the association is the Townsend Building and 

Loan Association. 

Jail. 

An old red jail·building was located back of the propert~ 
. . 

of George .Stant. The town was full of strangers, in the earl_y 

years ,especiall~ on holidays. On Whitsuntide the Negroes would 

have to work and would have large festivals which would draw 

hundreds of Negroes. The white children would be afraid to go 

on the streets. These people would drink alcholie beverages 

and become intoxicated and then s1.,art fighting, many times 

fighting with knives. These people would be fined and jailed. 

William Lynam was one of the town alderman. Special constables 

would be appointed for these special occasions. The p~isoners 

were given a little food and after their trial if they were foumd 

guilt~ were taken to the New Castle County Jail. 
. ' 

~any times children of the town while playin~ in the church 

grove would hear the prisoners trying to get out of jail. This ~a2 

exciting for the children. Sometimes the prmsoners did escape. 

~o punishment was inflicted upon the prisoners in the local jail. 
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The last jail or lock-up was in front of the present 

railroad station.At this time John Timmons was the constable• 

It is no longer necessarJ to a jail in the. town and constables 

are only appointed for such occasions as Halloween, when they 

are watching for pranksters. If police a~e needed for any reason, 

today the state police are notified to enforce the law. 

Fraternal and Social Organizations. 

There have been many fraternal organizations in Townsend, 

among them the Knights of the Golden Eagle, Junior Order of 

United American Mechanics, the Patriotic Order Sons of America, 

and the Ku Klux Klan. A branch of the Junior Order of the United 

American Mechanics was the Golden Ruie Council of the Daughters 

of America. This organization is the only remaining fraternal 

organization in the town today. 

Golden Rule Council of the Daughters of America was 

grabted a charter February 16, 1~03, when it had 27 members. 

It was organized by George Stant . and wife, and its aims were 

(1) to promote and maintain the interest of Americans and shield 

them from the depressing effects of unr~stricted immigration,(2) 

to assist Americans in obtaining employment, (3) to emcourage 

Americans in business, ( 4) to e~.tablish funds for the pa;yment 

of benefits in case of sickness, disability, or death of its 

members, (this was the main purpose of the organization in 

Townsend) (5) to maintain the public school s3stem ~f the United 

States of America and to prevent interference there with and uphold 

the reading of the Bible there in, (6) to oppose sectarian 



35. Minutes of the Goldem Rule Council, Daughters of America, 

170~-1751. Townsend, Delaware. 

36. An article written by Hannah Isaccs and Daisy Johnson 

· members of the Golden Rule _Council, 1951. (April) 



interference with State and National affairs, (7) to promote 

social intercourse and to assist in advancing the objects of the 

Junior Order of United American Mechanics, (8-) to establish funds 

to provide for a home for the aged and infirm members of the 

order and also to establish funds to assist and care for orphans 
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of deceased members of the order. 

According to two members of the group the following 

information has been given concerning the Golden Rule Council: 

We ascribe to lo~alty and ~atriotism for 
all. ie have had 150 members on our roll. 
At present these are 41 active members. 
Nine thousand dollars have been paid out 
in death claims and approxi.matel:y :;4500. 
in sick benefits. 
The first meeting of the Daughters of 
America was held in the Knights -Of lihe 
Golden Eagle Hall. The national deputy 
was present and installed the first 
officers:Mary Van Horn, Councilor, 
Susie Reynolds, Secretary, Essie Stant, 
First SecretarJ, Anna Shockley,Treasurer, 
wh ich of fice she h eld until her death in 
1S40. Charter members wereJ.A. L)nam, -
EsEie St a nt , Vi va L)nam, Susie Watts, 
Lonah Hodgson, Net tie Atwell, Mary 
Van Horn , Susie ReJno lds, Cassie E. 
Wright , Anna Shoc k l ey , Emma Lynam, 
Emma Lattomus , Mary A . Lattomus, 
Alic e Wa tts , ~a r ) J . Brown, Mrs. J. 
Ha;yman , ~~ rs . Danie 1 Ri chardson, Georgiana 
Loveg rov e , ~o l lie Lynam,N.W. Van Horn, 
W. A . Sc o tt , Mart i n Lee , E.G. ReJnolds, 
Fr a n c is Latt o mu s , .V . I ngram, The first 
na tional deput y was George Stant, others 
were i r s.Good of ~ilmington, Daisy Johnson 
of Town send, Mrs. Sere';rist o:fl Cla;ymont, 
Mrs.Alice Corrie of Smyrna. 36. 
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__ Among the other organizations were the music and dramatics 
clubs • These were known as the Philharmonic, Fortnighty, 
and the other social clubs were the Erodelphian Society, 
Swastika Club, and the Ladies Aid of the church. The Ku Klux 
Klan in Townsend was merelyy a law and order lodge. The Klan 
met at the various members homes and conducted their business, 
the members had the costrune of the Klan and also ca~ried out 
the ritual o~ the Klan at various times by burning a large 
cross near the town. This local Klan, however, did not 
enforce corporal punishment. 

Recreation in early Townsend consisted of home visits 
and gatherings. The evenings were spent popping corn or pulling 
taffy. Later the church socials cecame the center of attraction 
in the way of recreational activity. Many of the bo~s and girls 
would visit the home of John Townsend and wife in the evenings 
Lo pla;y games and then have a few refreshm.-2nts and return home. 
The Sunday school techers would often entertain, for example, 
George l\'i .D .Hart would have his class meet at his home for study, 
and then refreshments of ice cream and cake would be served. 

In the winter ice skating was one of the more popular 
sports. In the evenings large bonfires would be built along 
Harmon's Pond and the town people would come for an euening of 
skating. If it snowed, several of the men would clear paths on 
the pond for the skaters. 

Sleigh rides were another pop.ular and :romantic type of 
recreation. On Commerce Street irLJTownsend the men would pack 
the street with snow and begin at the south end of the street 
and have sleigh races. Tho.se participating ·.vere James L. Dickin.son, 
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Edward Hart, William Scott, George Knotts, George NaJlor, Walter 
Hevelow, and sometimes racers -from other towns. Mr. Dickinson's 

horse "Dan Patch", was usually one of the most frequent winners. 

Some of the best skaters in Townsend were Anna Townsend Gill, 
Mar;y V. Townsend, Ethelwyn Maloney, Lizzie Dorman, Lizzie Lockerman, 

Mamie Hulsfelt and sister, Ella Malone;y Morgan, Susie Wilson Money, 
Alec Montgomery, William Naylor, · Walter Mone;y, Walter Hart, and 

William Wells, Some of these better skaters would take the train 
to the Chesapeake and Delaware Canal and get off and spend the 

daJ skating up _and down the canal,then the;y wogld return on the 
euening train to Townsend. 

Another favorite pastime in the winter was riding on Robert 

BeardsleJ'S large wood sled which was pulled by oxen. Those who 
could not get ontthe sled would hookie on their smaller sleds 

bj holding on taethe back of the ox-drawn sled and Mr. Beardsley 

take them riding around the town. 

In the sum,.ae_r people went to the sulk;y races. There were 

several race tracks near town. Here refreshments were sold and 
some people remark that they had their first Coca Cola while at 

the races. The Fourth of July was apopular race day, flags and 

other decorations were strewn for the occasion. Racers came from 

Harve de Grace as well as other neighboring points to race. Betting 
practiced among the spectators. Horse racing proved a favorite 

pastime for man~ of the inhabitants. 
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Baseball was and still is a favorite sport of the 

residents of Townsend having had a local baseball team for 

many years. The Townsend club has produced manJ outstanding 

players in former years and John Townsend, a local resident ' 

became a pitcher for the Phillies, then the Cleveland Indians, 

and later the Washington Senators. 

Swimming and fishing were popular sports amomg the boJs 

of the town. Sum.mer picnics and excursions were held at Blackbird 

Landing, Port Penn Piers, ~oodland Beach, and Rehoboth; here all 

t:ypes of games were played by the grown ups as well as the children. 

Excursions were also run to Atlantic City, New Jersey, and Ocean 

City, Maryland. Ano;her favorite trip was to go/~gorgetown, 
Maryland, b;y carriage and take an excursion boat to Tolchester, 

~~1aryland. Bet-terton ,Mar:yland, was also a favorite SU!Ilmer resort. 

Festivals were held in the church grove, Strawberry ,festival.s, 

and ice cream and cake festivals, v. and als_o o;y13ter.r:·suppers ~·.iere 

sponsored bJ the church. The town had its own band and a grand-

stand would be erected and decorated for the occas~on. Benjamin 

Wells was the band leader; other members were Will~am Wells, who 

pla;yed the kettle drum, Charles Wells, bass drum, George Stant, 

bass horn, HarveJ NaJlor, cornet, William Naylor, a smaller . 

horn, #illiam Gill, cornet. "Townsend Cresent and Cornet Band" 

was the full name of this band, which had uniforms of blue and 

gold braid and wore lights on their hats for evening performances. 
s This band was outstanding in the parad~;of its dau having won 

several prizes, and was organized from about 18½8 to 1C:i08. 37-



Punch and JudJ shows were often brought to town, and the 

Chautauqua presented such plaJs as ~he Mikado. Pie and watermelon 

contests were often held at the various festivals. On any[JSpecial 

holiday there were alwajs socials or festivals planned f'or the 

occasion. The average evening was spent visiting other homes 

or playing checkers, card games, doing fancy work or reading. 

Sabbath Customs. 

It was customary for the families to have daily devot:ions 

around the family altar in the morning and in the eveningl On 

Sunda) people were not allowed to do anything. No newspapers 1 

to 
to read, no games or any activity on the Sabbath. All the food 

was prepared on Saturday for Sunday. It was known that a Jew, old 

Simon, as he was called was fined on the Sabbath for gre&siog 

his wagon. One Sunday when a group of' boys wanted to play baseball 

the alderman threatened each boy with a fine if theJ did play. 

Trains for many years did not run on Sunday. One confectioners 

storekeeper, would give his key to one of the boys for the week­

end and he told him to take the boys in after dust, but not to 

make anJ- li~ht as he did not want to be arrested. So there were 

violations of these Sabbath Blue laws. It was so strict that one 

gentlemen remembering the era stated"You were violating the law 

if ;you went out of the house on Sunday and did not go to church 

in the e:yes of the strict observers." · 

Among the social organizations today are the Methodist 

louth Fellowship for ytmng people. The Boy and. Girl Scouts have 

been functioning in recent years. The Mr. , Mrs. , Miss Club 

for young adults of the church, the Women's Society of Christi.an 

Service and the Iviizpah Bible Class for the women of the church. 



38. Ibid. as 5 page 3. 

39. Information obtained from Ethelwyn J. Maloney, grand-daughter 

of Levi W. Lattomus. 
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Other social organizations are the Daughters of America, 

Erodelphian Society, Bridge qnd Canasta Clubs, the Baseball Club, 

the Parents Teachers Association,- the Volunteer Firemen's 

Organization and Auxiliary, and the Home Demonstration and 

Four H Clubs for those interested in farming and homemaking. 

Politics. 

Politics has always been an important issue in Townsend. 

Samuel Townsend was a strong leader of the ~eople's Party and 

was opposed to the freeing of the slaves. In a Delaware newspaper 

the following announcement was made in 1858: 

A mass meeting of the People's Party 
will be held in Ginn's woods, Appoouinimink 
Hundred,near Townsend Station, on the· 
Delaware Railroad on Saturday 1 the 7th of 
August, which all persons are invited to 
attend without distinction of party. The 
meeting will commence a ·t 10 o'clock and 
be continued throughout the day. Several 
eminent speakers will be present on the 
occasion. Provision will be made to 
furnish dinner by persons in the neighbor­
hood. Come One! Come Allt 

-By order of the Central Comm.ittee. 38 • 

Levi Wesley Lattomus was representative to the state 

legislature in 1863-1864. There were omly nine representatives 

at this time. Mr. Lattomus, an advocate for calling the town 

of Townsend- Lancaster, gave his address at this time as being 
.3-L 

Lancaster. Mr. Lattomus was a Republican. 

William A. Scott was astrong defender of the Democrat £arty 

and would be on the ticket for some position at each election. Mr. 

Scott served in many county offices such as levy court commissioner, 

assessment board member and collector of internal revenue. 



40. Information obtained from the minutes of the General Assembly 

1951, who passed a resolution of sympathy upon the death of 

Edward Hart. 



45. 

Edward Hart was ano~her active Democrat,having served 

five terms in the House of ~epresentatives and three terms in 

the Senate •. This is the longest term anyone has served in the 
40. 

Delaware General Assembly. Mr. Hart entered the House of 

Representatives in 1903 and retired from public office in 1~34. 

Benjamin G. Lockerman was an advocate of the Republican 

Party,holding such political offices, as deputy collector of 

internal revenue, weigher of the mails at Wilmington and Philadelphia 

and also postal inspector, collector of taxes for Appoqu±nimink 

Hund.red and worked in Washington,D. C. as secretary to Senator 

Henry A. Du Pont from 1½06-1917. 

Richard Hodgson was another outstanding Republicam of 

this area, having been Speaker of the House of Representatives 

and at one time was Governor of the State for a few ho~rs as the 

Governor and Lt. Governor were both out of the State. 

Levi Lattomus Maloney was another Republican leader and 

was §tate Senator in 1½35, and at this time served as President 

pro tem:pore of the Senate.-

Frank Lattomus was the first Republican 3enator from 

this district. At this time the United States Senators were 

elected by the legislature and a Republican Senator from 

this district helped the Republican Party to elect a Republican 

0enator to Congress. Henry A. Du Pont was the man elected to 

United States Senate as a result of this election in 1~06. 
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There were very few Republicans in this area in the early 
years of the town. Most of _he people were Democrats. The present 
legislators from this disDrict are both Democrats, Representative 
James L. Dickinson,3rd, and Senator Fred Dolby. 

Local politicans ofi:he present day are N. W. Van Horn, 
Ethel 0~ Reynolds, Joseph C. Hutchison Sr. , Joseph C. Hutchison,Jr. , 
Margaret H. Buckson, David Hutchison, and Preston Lattomus, who are 
Republican leaders and Walter Lee, Lester Daniels, Jesse Watson, 
and Edward Slaughter, Democratic leaders. 

All affairs of the town are based on political interests. 
This is even evidenced in church meetings. In the town elections 
, however, there is little political competition. The state and county 
elections cause the most interest. It is said that the party having 
the most money to spend will win the election in Townsend. Many times 
a _party has sold out its candidate to the other pert~. The town itself 
was for many years Democratic, but the town today is fairly evenly 
divided in political matters. Townsend is the election center for 
Appoquinimink Hundred. There are two voting districts which are 
divided b~ the railroad. The loung Democrats haver.he only active 
political organization in the town to meet regularly during non­
election years. 

Townsend today is a small communi t;y of about five hundred 41. 
people. Its citizens have served their countr:y in the Civi-1 War, 
the Spanish American 1-far, and iJorld Wars One and Two, sacrificing 
their lives fort.he sake of their national heritage. The$e men and 
women who entered the service of their country were supported on the 
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home front by prayers, sacrifices and work. Many of the citizens 

of the community entered war work during the Second World War,· 

and made ammunitions and weapons for war purposes. People of the 

co.mm.unit) opened their homes to laborers who had been brought from 

the southern United States to work in the minition ylants at Eikton, 

MRryland. At home the women knitted and sewed for the Red Cross, 

while others met once week in the Red Cross rooms to sew and wrap 

bandages. Among those who met to sew were Hannah Isaccs, Mary Van 

Horn, Daisy Johnson, Margaret Webb, Ella Savin, Bernice Burge, 

Mary Chadwick, Clara Lattomus, Susie Reynolds, Estella Dickinson, 

Mabel Daniels, Bessie Hanby, and Freida Hart. 

Paper,scrap iron, tin cans were salvaged for the purpose of 

war use, and War bonds and stamps were purchased by many people oft 

the community. The· men, women, and children offered their services 

as airplane spotters and air raid wardens. Everyone contributed in some 

manner to the war effort. An Honor Roll was erected by the citizens 

of the town to honor the man and women who served in the World ~ar 

Two. 

The families of Townsend have always been noted for their 

generosity since the early begtnni.n~s of the town. Samuel Towbsend 

and his wife woul@ always send woodto the poor; and pack barrels of 

meats and vegetables for •the poor in the winter. When anyone was 

sick and needed special diets, f,'irs. Townsend would prepare .:pudd.ings 

and foods which the sick could eat. It is known of Mr. Townsend 

to have been·on to pra) by a new minister and he thinking of the 

poor having such a hard winter prayed as follows: 11 Lord, send the 

poor a barrel of floor, a barrel of salt, a barrel of meat, a ba~rel 

of pepper~ Lord, no thats too much pepper." 
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Other philanthropists were William Scott and Edward Hart. 

If anyone needed any money, food, clothing or WI!3.tever their need 

·i-~~y be, these kindhearted gentlemen would see that they had their 

needs provided for if it were possible. Many times they deprived 

themselves for the sake of helping others. 

Townsend's oldest citizen today is the wife of John 

Townsend, Etta Collins Townsend who celebrated her ~5th birthday 

this spring ~S5~. 
'v ' 

Townsend is a comm.unity where the citizens live together 

as one large family. Practically everyone is related to each other 

and it is a CO.IB.llion practice for the people to call each other cousin, 

aunt, or uncle. Ever~one knows exeryone else and each citizen 

shares the happinesses or the sorrows of the other. Each person 

shares the personal affairs of his neighboB; that is merely 

unharmful gossip as is proven when . a friend is needed they are always 

near to comfort or rejoice with their neighbors. Townsend has 

expanded very slowly in the one hund~ed years of its existence 

but has carried with it the traditions of the years and its 

citizens have been not only state and national citizens, but also 

have become citizens of the world, because they have learned to 

live and share together, regardless of race or color. 
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Historical Townsend House Has Checkered ·Background- Nm.P. Wilson 

·An unpainted frame house in the north end of Townsend that 

for over a century has sheltered natives and travelers alike, and with 

the passing ;years has become a landmark in the neighborhood, fuas been 

established as the town's oldest building. 

Its origin prior to 1827 is a mystery, but the prevailing 

opinion among historians in this section is that the house has stood 

for over 200 years. Over its span it has sheltered a.recluse who 
. 

walked abroad oml;y at night; at one time it was converted into an 

inn and housed m.anJ men on their waJ to service in the Civil War; 

among its other occupants have been a master of fox hounds, rund a 

coin and stampcollector. 

At first occupied by one familJ, it was later regared as suit­

able for two and has been used accordingly for about 60 ;years .• At 

one time a man nm.aed Joseph Fleming, the recluse lived there and was 

seldom seen outdoors. He appeared at night omlJ, but seldom, if ever 

spoke to others he chanced to meet in his rambles. He had a dog, an 

inseperatable companion ·when taking a short stroll on the winding 

dirt road, now an improved highway that borders the ancient dvNelling. 

Another tenant who followed Fleming was Samuel Powell. He 
d 

kept many fox hounds and wouZZgo out to hunt foxes to accomodate 

wealt~y hunters who paid him to accompany them on a long hunt, 

sometimes remaining three da~s before returning. 

In later years Henry Ronson and wif8, a quiet old comple 

residing there had a hobby of collect_irig coins, stamps, and whatnot. 

He scoured the country for miles aroucd for all the odd specimens to 

add to his lar~e collection. 



2. 

The dwelling has had more tenants it seems, than any other 

place. Many staying onlj for two or three months, leaving for one 

cause or another. But in later years the place has been constantly 

occupied b_ynthe same tenantst who apparentl;y find it a serene abode.. 

Anotherinteresting phase of its history is the belief that more 

photographs have been made of the dwelling than any other old place 

on the peninsula and the snap shot idea still goes merrily on. 

In 1858 the dwelling was comverted into an inn •. The proprietor 

was George Blint who must have believed in advertising freeJy, 

considering the crude. methods that hampered his plans to a great extent. 

He is said to have had a sign nailed on a pole near the door of the 

inn reading "All empty persons will be satisfied with the rich meals 

served here. Come in~ 11 

The place was still run as an inn when the Civil vVar started in 

1861 and many soldiers stopped there for a meal and night's lodging. 

Some of them were on sick leave while others were going to Jilmington 

to report for war service. 

The landmark is still somewhat sturdy, the rafters and other 

material comprising its construction being of oak and joined in a 

crude but substantial manner. r,iuch of the material is said to be 

the out put of craftJ woodsmen who made a neat job tr~mming for the 

framework. 

Townsend, Delaware November4,193~ 

iJJilliam Penn w.ilson, Gorrespond.co 
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An Act to incorporate the Town of Townsend. 

Be it enacted by the Sanate and House of Representatives of the State 

of Delaware in the General Assembl;y met (two-thirds each branch of 

the Legislature concurring). 

Sec~ion 1. That Eli C. Welch, Geo. M.D. Hart, James •T. Taylor, 

Daniel B. Maloney and Albert Lynam are hereby appointed commissioners, 

whose dut:y it shall be, and. they, ·or a majority o:f them, are h€reby 

authorized and empowered , with the assistance of a skillful 

surveyor,to be by them chosen, to surve;y and lay down on a plot 

the town of Townsend in New Castle County, esta~lishing its limits, 

arid making, describing and naming its streets and alleys, and shall 

when the service is performed, retu+n thetplot, under their hands, 

to the Recorder's office, at Wilmington, to be recorded, and the 

original and the record, or a certified copy thereof, sha~l be 

evidence. The commissioners and the surveyor,, before entering upon 

their duties under this section, shall take oath or affirmation to 

discharge them with fidelity, and the aforesaid return shall show 

that this Qualification was compiled with. 

Section 2. Be it further enacted as aforesaid, That the commissioners 

hereby appointed, and their successors in office , to be chosen as 

hereinafter provided, shall be a politic and corporate, in fact and 

in law, o;y the name of the Coill1Il.issioners of the Town of Townsend, 

and may sue and be sued by tnat name. They shall, in addition to .the 

power hereinbefore conferred, have power to regulate the streets, 

alle;ys, and sidewalks of said town, and maJ direct the latter. or 

such part thereof as they ma) determine, to be put in a safe and 

passable condition at the expense of the o·,;mers of the lands adj.3.cent; 
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(provided .further, that there will be no compulsion for an~one to 

pave their sidewalks for five years from date ;f this ac't); on 

complaint · of any citizen to examine any chim.me~s, stovepipe fixtures, 

orany matter dangerous to the town, and if adjudged dangerous, to 

require and compel it to be repaired, remedied, or removed; to 

prevent·orremove nuisances therein; to prohibit the firing of guns or 

pistols, . the making of bonfires, or the setting off of fireworks,or 

any dangerous SJort or practice in said town. 

Secti.on "/J. Be it further enacted as aforesaid, That the commiss:ioners 

' 
herein named shall continue in office until the first Saturday in May, 

A.D. 1886, on which day, in that year, there shall be held an election 

in said town of Townsend, at the school house, from 2 o'clock, P.M. , 

for the election of five commissioners: three of th~m forrone year, 

and two for two years; and on the aforesaid first Saturday of May in 

every year thereafter to elect three ob two commissioners as the 

requirements may be; and three of the said commissioners shall be 

freeholders, but any married man, resident of said . town, may be 

considered eligible for the office. The said election maj be held blJ 

the justice of the peace and two citizens, chosen b:;y 1,h.e people _present 

entitled to vote, who shall be judges of said election, and shall decide 

the legality of the votes offered. They shall recieve the ballots, 

ascertain the result, and certif) the same on the books of the 

commissioners. At such election every male and unmarried female 

taxable of said town, above the age of twenty one :years, and shall 

have _paid the town tax last assessed to them, shall be entitled to a 

vote; and it is further provided that, if so preferred, the female 

taxables ca.D. vote b) prox:y. The coIIl.ill.iss ioner~ elected in the year 1887, 
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and every ;year thereafter to hold their o(fice for the term of two 

;years; and if any vacani.es shall occur in said board of commissioners 

b _y death, resignation, or refusal to serve or otherwise, of any member 

thereof, yh~ remaining commissioners shall have the power to fill such 

vacancy or vacancies. 

Section 4.Be it further enacted as aforesaid, that there shall be four 

stated meetings in every Jear of the said commissioners, viz: on the 

first Saturday of June, September, December, and March, at which 

meetings they may pass all such ordinances or rules for the good 

government of the said town, the improvement of the street, the repairs 

of all trunks or water courses, the planting and protecting of ornamemt. 

tre_es, and for all other matters relating to the general welfare of 

said town as said commissioners may deem proper; provided the same be n< 

repugant to · the constitution and laws of the State and of the United 

States. By such ordinances they may impose fines,penalties, and 

fortfeitures, and provide for their collection; also, the president sha: 

, at the request of two or more commissioners, call a special meeting 

of the commissioners when ever they deem such meetings necessary, and 

at such meetings they shall have the right to transact ahy business tha1 

the) may have power to transact at regular meetings. The said 

commissioners shall at their first meeting after the election elect 

one member of their number as president of said board, whose duty it 

shall be to preside at the meetings of the council, have the general 

supervision of all streets in said town and of the persons who ma:y be 

emplo;yed b:y the town commissioners, :rieceive com_plairjts of nuisances, 

and other complaints of citizens of violation of the laws and 

ordinances, and pre sent the same to the com~issioners at their first 

meeting for action, and violations or infractions of the laws or 

ord.inance2 as re-:pire immediate actio ~-- to cause the same to be 

pr00;eded on before . the alde rmen. He shall 2ign all warrants om the 
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treasurer for the payment of any money, and shall perform such other 

duties as may be prescribed by any ordinance or ordinances of the 

town commissioners. And if any one, being duly elected commissioner, 

shall refuse to serve, he shall be fined the sum of five dollars, and 

the same be recovered -before any justice of the peace of the county 

of New Castle, with costs. 

Section 5. Be it further enacted as aforesaid, That the commissioners 

herein named and their _successors in the office shall, at their first 

stated meeting in every )ear, determine the amount of tax to be raised t 

said town for that year, not exceeding one hundred dollars, including 

tax on real and personal property, poll tax and tax on dogs not include< 

and they shall appoint an assessor, who may or may not be of their 

number, to make an assessment of persons and property in said town, and 

shall also appoint a collector and treasurer. It shall be the duty of 

the assessor of said town, within two weeks from his appointment, to 

make a true, just and impartial valuation ana assessment of all the 

real estate and assessable personal property within said town, and 

also an assessmentof all make citizens residing in said town above the 

age of twentJ one Jears, as well as those owning real estate as those 

not owning such estate within its limits, at twentj five cents per head 1 

and also to ascertain the number of dogs within the said town, and 

assess the owner or keeper of a dog or dogs fifty cents fo ~ first male 

dog, and one dollar for each and every additional dog, and two dollars 

for each female dog. And the said assessor shall forthwith after 

making such assessment, deliver to the corn.missioners for the time being 

a duplicate containing the names of all the persons assessed and the 

amount of assessment, distinguishing the real and personal assessment 

of each. The compensation of said assessor shall be two dollars and 
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and fift~ cents for his service. When the assessment is returned, the 

commissioners shall give five days ·public notice of the fact, and they 

will sit together at acertain place and on a certain day, to be designed 

by them, from five to seven o'clock .in the afternoon, to hear appeals 

from said assessment. They shall have power on such daJ to add to or 

decrease any ass~ssment except that of dogs and poll, which shall always 

remain at the figures above stated. When the appeal day is past, they 

shall, without delay, cause the assessment list to be transcribed and 

the transcript to be delivered to the collector, who shall thereupon 

collect from each taxable his proportion of~~~ tax laid and pay over the 

whole amount, deducting commissions :'and delinquencies,(which shall be 

allowed by the commissioners), to the treasurer by the first day of 

February next -after the receipt of his duplicate. The collector shall 

have the same power for the collection of said taxes as are conferred 

by law on the collector of county taxes. Provided further, that any 

manufacturing interests that may st-art in said town shall be exempt 

from all town for ten y~ars. 

Section 6. And be it further enacted as aforesaid, That the commissioners 

or a majority of tl.ulm, shall have authority to employ and use the money 

in the treasur~ of the town for the general improvement, benefit and 

ornam.emt of the said town, as the~ may deem advisible, and all money 

paid out by the treasurer shall be paid upon order of the comm.issioners, 

or a majority of thRm. 

Section?. Be it further enacted as aforesaid, That the Road Commissioners 

of Appoquinimink Hundred shall annually appropriate for the repair of 

the roads and streets ofi said town a sum oi mon e y not more than one 

hundred dollars, and shall make an order for the payment thereof to the 



treasurer of the town of Townsend,. for the use of said tow~. The town 
commissioners shall render to the road commissioners an account of how 
the said money was expended. 

Section 8. Be it further enacted as aforesaid, ·The commissioners shall 
appoint an alderman and a town constable. 
Section 9. Beit further enacted as aforesaid, That it shall be the duty 
of the alderman o~ said town , and of said. constable, to suppress all 
riotous, turbulent, disorderl~, or noisy assemblages or gatherings of 
persons in or at any building used for any fair, festival, concert, or ar 
other social, literar~, or religious meeting, or any entertainment 
whatsoever, or in the streets, lanes or alleys od said town, at any time / 

or seas.onwhatever, to prevent all gatherings whatever may obstruct or ir 
terfere withthe free use of the streets, lanes,· alleys, or sidewalks; 

• and for this pnrpose it shall be the duty of said constable to seize 
and arrest any such persons so offending and take them or him before 
the alderman of said town, whose dutJ it shall be to hear and determine 
the case, and upon conviction before him the alderman shall sennence 
any such person so convicted to pay a fine not exceeding ten dollars, 
and may comm.it the party or parties to prison for a period not exceeding 
thirtJ days, or until the said fines and costs shallbe paid. It shall 
be the duty of the alderman of said town, upon complaint made before him 
of such riotous, turbulent or nois~ assemblages or gatherirogs as 
aforesaid, to issue his warrant to the constable aforesaid, commanding hi , 
to arrest and bring any such person so offending as aforesaid before 
him for trial. It shall be the dutJ of the constable aforesaid to arrest 
any drunken or disorderly person theJ ma) see on the streets of said 
town, and take such person so arresteQ before the alderman of said town, 
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who shall proceed forthwith to hear and determine the case, and upon 

conviction beforehim he shall sentence such person in the same manner 

and to the same punishment provided in this section for the punishment 

of persons brought before him for the offences in thus section first 

enumerated. If, upon-view of the person or ~ersons who may be brought 

before the alderman of said town for violation of this section, it shall 

appear to the alderman that in his judgment such person or persons are not 

in a condition to be heard and tried, he may use his own discretion in 

fixing or appointing a time for trial of all such persons brought before 

him for violating this section. The fee to the alderman of said town for 

the trial of any cause under this section shall be fifty cents, and to 

the constable making the arrest fifty cents. And in all cases of fees for 

the alderman and constable not herein provided for they shall be 

entitled to receive the same fees as are specified b~ law to be paid to 

justices of the peace and constables in like cases. 

Section 10. Be it further enacted, That this act shall be deemed and be 

a public act, and shall be printed among the laws of this state. 

Pas~ed at Dover, ,April 3, 1885. 
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An act authorizing the " Commissioners of the ':fawn" to borrow and 
issue bonds therefor, for the purpose of suppl~ing the Town of Townsend 
and its inhabitants with water. 

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the 
State of Delaware in the General AssemblJ met (with the concurrence of 
two-thirds of all the members elected to each branch of the General 
Assembly): 

Section 1. 11 The Commissioners of the Town of Townsend", a 
Municipal Corporation of the State .of Delaware, is hereby authorized 
and empowered to borrow on the faith and credit of the Town of Townsend, 
a sum of money not exceeding Fifteen Thousand Dollars (§lS,000.00) for 
the purpose of supplying the said Town and its inhabitants with water, 
bw the acquisition, purchase, construction, and erection of such property, 
works and apparatus dS may be necessary or convenient therefor, and for 
this purphaee toissue bonds of the . said Municipal Corporation. 

The said moneys so borrowed shall be used for the acquisition, 
purchase, construction and erection of such property, works and apparatus 
as may be necessary or convenient for the puxpose of supplying water in 
said Town; and title may be taken in the name of the said Municipal 
Corporation to such propert;y and works as ::nay be necessary for the 
purpose, whether within or without the Corporate limits of .the siad Town. 

Section 2. The said money shall be borrowed and the bonds issued 
in such amounts, at such times, in such form and denominations, and at 
sucb rate of interest not exceeding six percent, as the Commissioners 
of said town shall by ordinance duly pas~ed determine. The principal 
of said bonds shall be made payable at the expiration of thirty years 
from the date of the is:::1..1.e therefor, the said rv:unicipal Corporation 
:r:eserving the right to redeem said bonds, · or any of them, at par and 
accrued interest, at any interest period after the expiration of five 



2 

Corporation shall elect to redeem an~ of said bonds as aforesaid, 

such redemption shall be mad in pursuance of a notice to that effect 

published at least twice a week for at least three successive weeks in 

at least two newspapers of the City of Wilmington. In calling said 

bonds for redemption, they shall be called consecutively beginning 

with the lowest number, and the interest on all bonds so called shall 

cease from the date named in said calls for redemption. 

The "Commissioners of the Town of Townsend" shall direct and 

effect the preparation and printing of and negotiate the .sale and 

delivery of the said bonds. The said bonds shall bear date when issued 
and shall bear interest from date, paJable semi-annually. They shall 

be signed by the President and the Treasurer of said "Commissioners of 
the Town of Town.send", and be sealed with the Corporate seal of the 

said Municipal Corporation and shall be exempt from State, County, and 
Municipal taxation. 

The moneys received from the sale of the said bonds shall be paid 

over to the Treasurer of the "Cofillliissioners of the Town of Townsend", 
and held by him as a special fund to be drawn out and used for the 

purpose of this Act upon direction of the ''Coffi.ilii~sioners of the Town 

of Townsend", The Treasurer shall furnish additional bond.i to cover 

such fund, in such an amount as the "Commissioners of the Town of 

Townsend" ma:y direct. 

Section 3. The "Commissioners of the Town of Townsend" are 

authorized and required to levy and collect annually by taxation such 

SWli of mone~ as shaall be sufficient to pay the interest accruing on 

said bonds; and are further authorized and empowered to levy and collect 

b) taxation from ti~e to time such su~ or sums as shall be necessary to 
provide a sinking fund adequate for the redemption of said bonds at or 

befoie their maturity. The taxes for such interest and sinking fund 



shall be levied and collected in the same manner as are the other 
town taxes in said Town. The sinking fund above provided for shall 
not be available for any other purpose. 

All necessary expenses in and about the p~eparation, printing 
and sale of said bonds shall be paid out of the moneys herein 
authorized to be borrowed. 

Should any surplus remain after the work contemplated by this 
Act has been accomplished, said surplus shall be held and applied 
toward the payment of the principal of said bonds herein authorized. 

Section 4. The "Commissioners of the Town of Townsend" shall 
cause to be published a detailed statement of all expenditures of money 
borrowed under the authority of this Act. 

Section 5. The superintendence, management, operation and control 
of any such system of supplying water to the Town of Townsend and its 
inhabitants, as is contemplated by Section 1 of this Act, shall be had ai 
and held by the "Commissioners of the Town of Townsern;i", under and in 
accordance with such rules, regulations, ordinances, and directions, 
as the said "Commissioners of the Town of Townsend" ma;y fi::mmtime to time 
deem pDoper to make or adopt. Approved Fe~ruary 21, A.E. 1~27. 
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A Brief History of the Immanuel M. E. Church of Townsend, 

Delaware. Annamanda Lattomus Maloney from memory and from 

facts obtained from the church records. 

For a number of years prfuor to 1871 religious services were 

held in the little red frame school house. A soc1ety was formed; 

prayer and experience meetings were held and occasionally preaching 

services. The Society had the pleasure of lis.ten:ing to such ministers 

as Dr. Jm. Urie, Wm. Gregg, J.B. Man, and others. 

On June the 3rd,1871,the following notice was placed on the 

school house door by brother Archibald Finley. 

Notice. 

"Being authorized by the Society of the Methodist Episcopal 

members that worship at Townsend School House who met June lst,1871, 

I hereby notify the said Society to meet at the school house June 

13th at 5 o'clock P.M. for the purpose of electing a board of trustees 

to procure groung and build a Methodist Episcopal Church at the said 

place. (Ordered by the Society June 3rd, 1871) A. Finley. 

In obedience to the call a number of persons met in the school 

house on June 13th. Rev. Wm. Urie(Preacher in charge of the Smyrna 

Circuit) in the chair. Rev. John~- Smith, junior preacher, served as 

temporary secretary. Brother Urie opened the meeting with pra;yer and 

then stated the object of the meeting: being to elect a board of trusteE 

The following persons were elected: Archibald ?inley, Richard Townsend, 

I!::rael P. Hall, Isacc .Pass waters, George M. .D. Hart, l'Jilliam Daniels, 

David S. LJnam, Nehemiah Davis. Archibald Finley was made President of 

the Broad. George ~.D. Hart, secretar) and Richard Townsend, treasurer. 
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Richard Townsen« and Nehemiah Davis were appointed as a com.mitteeto 

purchase the land, attend to the surveying and procure a deed. The 

land which they decided to purchase ~as apart of the grove near the 

old red school house, it was entailed and in the possession of Samuel 

B. Ginn, who could only sell a life time right, which he agreed to dd 

for the sum of §100. 

On the 20th of June 1871, the comiliittee employed Henry Davis to 

survey the ground containing one acre. On the 24th of June the trustees 

decided to build a temporary plank church and that Archibald FinleJ, 

Richard Townsend and Wm. P. Forest shou1d serve as a building com.mitee. 

It was also decided at this meeting that the name of the church should 

be Emmanuel. 

On the 20th of August 1871, the church was dedicated by brothers 

Urie and Clymer, of Smyrna, Delaware. It was found on that day that 

enough money wa2 subscribed to pay all bills- against the church. 

On September i4th, 1871, by order of Archibald Finley, a meeting 

of the official board was called for the purpose of having the church 

somewhat improved and made comfortable for the winter (it having been P' 

up in a rather hurried manner,more especially for sum.mer use). It was 

decided to plaster it and put on a shingle roof. The ent~re cost, 

including the lot and the improvements, amounted to t77S.17. 

From 1871 until we were made a station by the conference of 1878 

we weFe an evening appointment and were served by the following ministers­

Rev. 1vm. Urie, Rev.C •• ~.- Pre~tyman, Rev. J.B. Killian and Rev. James 

Carroll. On June 13th, 187~ the pa~tor(our first) Rev. John Heston 

vlilley, called a meeting of the Board of Trustees. At this meeting 
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Richard Townsend and Daniel B. Maloney and George M.D.Hart were 

appointed to repair, improve and enlarge the church which they did 

at the cost of ~600, The church was reopened in the early fall. The 

following minsters were pre~ent- Bishop Levi Scott, Rev. George 

Brister and our pastor, Rev. J.H. Willey. At the solicitation of 

Samuel Townsend Sr. the Pennsylvania Railroad presented the church with 

a bell. Said bell had been· used by the Company in the town of New 

Castle to warn the people of the incoming and outgoing trains. 

On the 22nd of August~ 1881, a meeting of the trustees was 

called and on motion of Levi W. Lattomus it was agreed to buy one 

and one half acres of land from James T. Taylor for a cementary at 

the cost of §250. 

In 1886, during the pastorate of Rev. E. P. Roberts, a lecture 

room was added to the church which cost §175. In the year 18Sl, during 

the pastorat~ of Rev. F. Fletcher, a parsonage was built which cost 

tl5~1.17. On July of the same Jear the Ladies was organiz2d. 

In 18S4 we were again made a circuit,our mother church, Old -

Union, being one of the appointments. In the year 18~7 the church was 

reseated with opera chairs and repainjed and papered at a cost of t350. 

During the pastorate of Rev. Albert Chandler, in l8j8, 

Blackbird was added to the circuit. 

After the death of Samuel B. Ginn a comrtlttee was appointed 

to secure our church lot. On October 1st, 1~00 the said committee v. ,_' ·: 

iReportee..:1.the;yshad~ar;vangad·s,d.c±hltihe heirs of Mr. Ginn and their attorney 

Frank Biggs, for the purchase of the original one acre of ground with 

the addition of a lot 70ft. front and running bac-3 the full depth of the 
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of the old lot, for the sum of §400. The trustees accepted their report 

and authorized them to close the matter on the day of the public sale 

of the Ginn land, which they did. The money was easily raised on a 

Sunday morning by our pastor the Rev.G.P.Jones. 

A meeting was held at the W.C.T.U. Hall on April 5th,l~Ol. 

Members present were Rev.G.P.Jones, George M.D. Hart, Armwell L. Quil,.len, 

Daniel B. Maloney, W.A. Scott, John R. Carpenter, George E. Pindar, 

Winfield Lattomus .• The meeting was called for the purpose of deciding as 

to whether we should repair the old church or build a new one. Wm. A. 

Scott moved that we build a new one, which motion was seconded by 

D.B. Malo~ey; the matter was discussed pro and con, George M.D. Hart 

was elected chairman of the building committee of three with power to 

appoint the other two members. After consideration he appointed Wm.A. 

Scott and Daniel B. Maloney. The pastor was ready and enthusiastic in the 

matter and did all he could to get the work started but the trustees 

could n~t see their way clear until it was late in the year. In March~ 
' -~ 

1S02, the powers that
1
.gave the itinerate wheel a turn and took Rev! 

Jones away from us but sent us Rev. John H. Beauchamp who, as minsters 

usually do, took up the work where Brother Jones left it and has done wha1 

he could to make it a success. It is the opinion of ghe writer that the 

Lord would not make the way clear to the trustees because they had in 

their minds a frame church. 

Our ministers since 1878 have been as follows-

Rev. John Heston Willey 

Thomas E.Bell 

Charles K. korris 

David H. Corkran 

~.P. Roberts 

S. ii. M.org:an 

I. Natkins 

1878-1881 

1881-1883 

1883-1886 

188:,-1886 ? 

1886-1887 

1887-1890 

;:arch 18½0- September 18SO 
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Herman Roe Sep~ember 1890-March 18Sl 

Rev. Frank Fletcher 

Rev.F.F. Carpenter 

Rev. Albert Chandler 

Rev. George P. Jones 

Rev. J.H. Beauchamp 

18Yl-:1893 

18S3-1895 

18S5-1898 

1899-1902 

1Cj02-

To those of us who worshipped in the old church, from childhood, 

every inch of it is dear ~et we are glad .to seeit take its place on the 

back of our church lot and give way to the handsome new brick struc~ure 

now in process of erection. We tru.1-y believe · thatniHitherrto hath the Lor 

led us." And to Him we p;ive the honor, glor-y and praise forever. 

(This histors was read at· the laying of the Corner Stone by Wm.A.Scott, 

September 10th, 1~02.) 

The corner stone wqs laid on September 10th, 1~02. The following 

ministers were present- Rev. J.H.Beauchamp(pastor), Rev. G.P.Jones, 

Rev. C.T.WJatt, Rev.C.S.Baker, Rev. T.F.Beauchamp, Rev! G.L.Hardesty, 

and Hh.K.Mc Cabe (local preacher). 

Programme. 

Song- How Lovely Are Th.y Dwellings. 

Reading by Rev. G.P.Jones 

Prayer by Rev. C.S.Baker 

Reading by Rev. Hardest~ and others. 

History of church-v'✓ .A. Scott 

History of Sunday School- D.B. ~aloney 

Junior League- ~thelwyn J. MaloneJ 

Sermon- Rev. C.T. Wyatt- the text ''She hath done what she could'' 

Prayer by the Rev. G.P. Jones. 

Annamanda Lattomus Maloney. 



Brief History of the Bmmanuel M.E. Sunday Schoo'l of Townsend, 

Delaware. 

In about the year 1864 a Sunday School was started in the 

public school of this place. Soon after it was to close,when a band 

of little girls, five in number, got together and talked the matter 

over. The~ were Emma and Laura Ennis, Katie Bel~, Cassie Naudain 

and Annamanda Lattomus. They concluded that a certain lady, who was 

an especial favorite with them (because of her sunny disposition and 

her fondness for music) would be the one to take charge of the Sunday 

School. Accordingly thes formed themselves into a delegation and went 

in abody to call on her., she being no other than Mrs. Sallie A .C. 

Townsend, wife of Richard Townsend. She was at that time a professed 

i"nfidel but the children knew nothing about that. They th,ought, in 

their litt·le hearts that she was the one to save the scho,.ol so thay 

plead with her until she finally consented to lead the sc.hool in 

everything but pra:y er. Mrs. Townsend afterward claimed t~at it was throt 

her study that she was led to Christ. Her husband was also soon brought 

into the church. 

From the time the school was organized until the cnurch was 

built it was in the care of the following Superintendents: Wm. J. 

Lank 1865 to 1868, Sallie A. C. Townsend, Joseph C. Hutchison, 

J. Thomas Budd. In a short while after t~e first church was dedicated 

Daniel B. Maloney was elected Superintendent and with the exception 

of one year, 1902, when Dahiel B. Malone1 served, has continued in 

office ever since. 

September 10th, k902 By Annamanda La'1ttomus M.aloney 
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History contin~ed by Ethelwyn J. Maloney 

The present enrollment of the school ia as f-0llowa­

Officers and Teachers 20 

Beginners and Primary 60 

Cradle Roll 35 

Home Department 12 

Intermediate and Senior 120 average attendance of 135 

Total 247 

The records show that Daniel B. Maloney served as Superintendent 

for 54 years and his daughter, Ethelwyn served as Superintendent 

for twevle years, making a record of 66 years of continous ·service 

for one family. 

January 5th, 1S37 Ethelwyn J. Maloney 

E.J. Maloney served five ;years after this was written making a total 

of 71 years for she and her father. 1942. 

The following is a short histor;y(continued hi~tory) of the 

church by Ethelw;yn J. Maloney since 1 go2. 

The following minsters have served since 1902-

Rev. J.H. Beauchamp 1S02-.1½04 

J. Wheeling Jones 1yo4.:....1906 

F.C. M.c Sorle:y 1½06.l.1911 

L.I. Mc Dougle 1911-1Sl3 

Warren Burr 1Sl3-1Sl8 

L.E. Barrett 1½18-1':;19 

Z .H. Webster 1g1c,-1q20 

George P. Jones 1½20-lC;23 



Rev. O.R. Connelly 

Robert Hodgson 

Clarence N. Jones 

A.W. Strickland 
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1923-l<;J27 

1½27 

Not one of the original trustees are living. The records show 

that Daniel B. Maloney was recording Steward for fifty seven 

consecutive Jears (his daughter Ethelwyn J. Maloney, has been for 

twevle years since his death in 1½25.) 

The present church was built at a cost of §12.600. The parsonage 

was built at a cost of §3000. during the pastorate of Rev. Warren 

Burr. The Baptistismal Font was given in memory of the father and 

mother of William Salmon, he being the donor. There are a number 

of memorial windows, which are said to be equal to any of the 

windows in the Wilmingto.n churches. The bell intthe present church 

was given by the members of the Sunday School Class of Ethelwyn J. 

Malone:v in l<:>02. The church was renovated at a cost of SlSOO. 

Ethelwyn J. Maloney 

History of the church continued by John W. Dickinson. 

1v:inisters who served continued-

Rev. D'Arcy .Littleton -1C;40 

Jacob c. Hanby 1~40- 1944 

Tilghman Smith l~L\4- 1S48 

vVilliam Bubdick 1½48-

In 1~46 a ~icks Organ and Chimes were dedicated to the church. 

The Mizpah Bible Class were responsible for the dedication of the 

electric organ, the funds for the organ were obtained from members 

of th :: com:.:iunit:v and familie.:: who had moved away from the community. 

·:rhP. Chimes were presented by .i:;;thelw~n J. Maloney in memorJ of her 

mother and father , Daniel .B. ~\1aloney and Annamanda L. Malone;y . 

The cost of the organ and chimes amounted tn lu~nn T- , r , . • 
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worship center was dedicated for the use of the Methodist Youth 

Fellowship by ~homson Beardsley, who made the b .eautiful worship 

center himself. In 1951 a· brick wall with a iron railing was 

added to the f.ront steps of the church for the convenience of 

its members. This railing was placed by the Three M's Class and 

a generous contribution was made by Mrs. Thomas Lattomus. 

The church today has a membership of about 228 members. 

The Spperintendents of the Sunda;y School since the retiremept of 

E.J. Maloney have been Nellie E. Money who had served as assistant 

superintendent for many years, Willard Robinson, who later entered 

the ministgr,' and the present superintendent John W. Guessferd, 

assistant superintendent, John lJ. Dickinson, also director of 

youth, the superintendent of the primary department i~ Catherine 

Dukes. The president of the Official Board of the church is 

Walter Lee, the secretary,Clara U. Reynolds, and treasurer, 

Joseph C. Hutchison, and assis~ant secretary and treasurer, 

~dna A. Hart. The church has grown and today plans are being made 

for an addition to the Sunda;y School building. 

April 28, 1,951 John W. Dickinson 
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found was too severe; he then went to Odessa to learn 
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v,rted October 16, 1821, preached as an itinerant in the 
apriog of 1826, and in 1827 was junior preacher in 
the Dover District; 1828 in full connection. In lc345 
he was presiding elder of South Philadelphia District. 
In 1848 he was assistant book agent for a ltlethodist 
bi<>k concern in New York. 1852 l\£ethodhst Episco­
pacy. 

INDUSTRIES.-The earliest record of any industry 
in Appoquinimink Hundred is relative to the mills 
in N oxontown. ,vhen they were built is unknown, 
but in 1736 Thom:1.t1 Noxon purchased an acre of land 
for the use of a new mill. The mill here referred to 
is the mill known now as Drumm0Iid'11 Mill. From 
this it is fair to infer that the mil! now owned and 
operated by William E. Evans was erected at an 
earlier date. It is said that the old mill wa1s used 
solely for merchant work, and that ships ran to it and 
were loaded at its door. The new mill was erected 
for custom work, which was no small industry at that 
time. After the death of Thomas N ox.on, in 17 43, he 
devised his mills to his son, Benjamin, who operated 
them for some time. In 1786 Benjamin Williams 
was the owner of these mills, and ·on the usessment 
list of 1816 they were charged to the estate of Joseph 
Curry. The old mill was afterwards owned re,pec-­
ti vely by Samuel Hand, Ed ward Silcox and now by 

I 

William E. Evans. It is a four-story frame building, 
forty by thirty feet. The grinding is done by burr, 
and is entirely cuatom work. The new mill was later 
owned by J. Drummond, and is now in the possession 
:of the New Castle County Bank. It was refitted 
with a complete roller system in 1887, and has a. 
capacity of a barrel and a half per hour. It is now 
-operated by Willits Clothier. . The earliest rec­
ord of the mill now owned by I. A. Harmon is 
found on the assessment list of 1816, when it was the 
property of Joseph & Whitby, who was a ls.rge land­
owner in the vicinity of the mill. At his death the 
mill passed to his son, J obn, who operated it for some 
time. and then sold it to Garret Ottison. It was after­
wards owned by - Hunter, who sold it to -­
McDaniel, by whom it was repaired and generally 
improved. The mill wae next owned respectively by 
John Lewis and William Johnson, by whom it was 
conveyed to the present owner. It was a two-story 
frame building, situated a mile north of Townsend. 
It is fitted up with burrl4, and grinds custom work 

A tile-yard was operated by 1\ilatthews & Van Dyke 
for a few years in thie hundred, about a mile south of 
Odewa. It bas not been operated for the past twenty 
years. They had a capacity of three hundred thou­
sand tiles per year. 

In 1872 a brick-yard was opened a short diHtance 
south of Townsend hy Samuel R. Warren. It was 
operated a year by him and then sold to D. B. Malo­
ney, the preaent owner. Brick are manufactured 
here during bix months of the year and employment 

ia given for that period to five men. Ab~~t.one .. nun-
..2 __ .1 --..l ..,,,, ___ .... .. -,; ....... •l..n.naan~ D'PA mgntH!!.C!;grea !\!!-
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nully for home consumption. . 
In 1888 Samuel R. Warren erected a saw-mill on 

hie premises in this hundred. This he operated until 
1887 when he moved it to Sudlersville. It had a ca-

' pacity of two thousand five hundred feet per day and 
gave employment to thirteen men. Merchant and 
cul!ltom work were executed. 

The brick-yard on the fa.rm of Samuel R. Warren 
was opened by him in 1886. It gives employment to 
six men for six months in the year. About two hun­
dred thousand -bricks are manufactured annually. 

Appleton & Hart erected a frame building, twenty · 
four by forty feet, on the corner of Commerce and 
Gray Streets, Townsend, in 1882. They fitted it up 
with two evaporators and commenced evaporating 
peaches. In 1884 Appleton sold his share to Hart, 
who enlarged the size and capacity of the manufactory. 
The p~esent capacity is eight hundred baskets per day. 
The evaporating season lasts six weeks per year and 
during this period G. M. D. Hart gives employment 
to one hundred operatives. The fro.it is.shipped prin­
cipally to New York and Philn.delphie. 

PosT-OFFICE.-The post-office was established at 
Townsend September 1, 1856. Levi W. La.ttomus 
was the first postmaster. He was succeeded by J as. 
·C. \Vilson l'i.nd John S. Wilson. William A. S~ott, the 
present incumbent, was appointed October 1, 1885. 

The post-office at Fieldsboro' was estabJished in 
1854 with Edward Silcox 8EI its first postmaster. He 
was succeeded in October 1858 by William Doughton. 
Jos. 0. Hutchinson, William W. Lynam and Fred­
erick H. Well er have also served as postmasters here. 
Edward Silcox: the first postmaster and present in­
cumbent, took charge of the office again in 1886. 
One mail a day north and south is received here~ 
The stage line running from Townsend to Deakyne-
ville carries the mail to this point. · 

HOTELs.-The first hotel in Townsend was erected 
about 1857 by Abraham Ingram. It was fint occupied 
by Joseph T. Hill. The property was afterwards 
owned by Wi1liam Scott and Levi W. ·Lattomus. 
Shortly after Mr. Lattomus' purchu~ it was converted 
into a dwelling, in which he resided until hi~ death, 
and it is-now occupied by his family. 

The present hotel was first opened as a restaurant 
about 1870 by James C. Townsend. At a later period 
the dwelling was annexed b: the owner, Samuel 
Townsend. It has been operated by several proprie 9 

tors and is owned and managed by J. L .. Dickinson. 
THE MUTUAL LOAN A.SSOOIA.TION of 'Xownsend, 

Delaware, was organized in February, 1888. The first 
officers of the association were : President, J oho F. 
Staats; Vice-President, William R. Martin; Secre­
tary and Treasurer, William A. Scott. Directors: 
John 14\ Staats, William R. Martin, George M. D. 
Hart, D. Jl. Maloney, Thomas Maloney, George L. 
To,vnsend, S. R. Warren; Dr. J. V. Crawford, T. A. 
Enos. 
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Mhare has a value of $400. Its influence has been felt 
in the growth of the town. 

The officers are the same as above, with the fol1ow­
ing e:i:ceptions : 

George L. Townsend succeeded William R. Martin 
as vice-president, and L. V. Aspril, Jr., and George 
W. Vandyke are directors vice William R. Martin and 
Dr. J. V. Crawford. 

TOWNS AND VILL.AGES.-Fieldsboro' is the name 
of a small village in Appoquinimink Hundred, about 
three miles northeast of Townsend, on the upper 
" King's Road." It was so named in honor of Wil­
liam Fields, whc at on~ time owned the land on which 
it is 1::1ituated. It contains a school-house, post-office, 
a wheelwright and blacksmith-shop, two stores, kept 
respectively by Ed ward Silcox and James H. Garten, 
and about eight dwellings. 

Tuwnsend.-Previous to 1850 the only buildings 
within the present limits of Townsend were two or 
three huts occupied by negroes. The most noted of 
these was Charles Lloyd, after whom the village was 
called Charley Town. About this period the land 
immediately west of the town and a portion of the 
present town was purchased by Samuel Townsend, a 
man of considerable prominence in this vici·nity. When 
the railroad was constructed through this section and 
a station located here, the question as to what the 
name of the depot shouJd be caused considerable dis­
putatione Samuel Townsend advocated calling it 
"Townsend," and his opponents favored "Lancaster,'' 
which was said to be the old name for this tract-. 
Townsend was finally agreed upon, and the town has 
&ince that time borne this name. The first store in 
the town was opened in 1851 by Levi W. Lattomus, 
whose sons are still eQgaged in business in the town. 
The viHage grew quite rapidly, and April.3, 1885, was 
incorporated as a town. The incorporators were Eli 
C. Welsh, George M. D. Hart, D. B. Maloney, Albert 
Lynam and James T. Taylor, who were also instructed 
to secure the services of a skillful engineer and make 

'DT 'l'f'ITDT'DT\ UTTVn"D"J."n .IJl.&.IJ:L'\.,l..allL..&l.&..&WA.I ..... '-'.,,..,_., __ _ 

PREVIOUS to 1875, the territory included within the 
present limits of this !iundred formed a · portion of 
Appoquinimink Hundred. On March. 9 of that year, 
an Act of the Legislature was passed, dividing Appo­
quinimink Hundred by the fol1owing line: "Beginning 
at the mouth of Blackbird Creek, running with said 
creek and main branch to a bridge in the road leading 
from the head of Sassafras to Smyrna, thence westerly 
to the centre of said road to the cross-roads known as 
Dexter's Corner; thence southwesterly with the r\Jad 
leading by Garman's school-house; thence to Cypr~s 
Bridge, and thence down Cypress branch to the divi­
ding line between Maryland and DelBware." AH the 
territory in N AW Castle County south of this line was 
declared to be Blackbird Hundred. About twenty.;.five 
years ago the land of this hundred was mostly covered 
with timber, At the present time, about one-half of the 
hundred is in a state of cultivation, producing peaches, 
wheat, com and oats in large quantities. The forests 
are rapidly disappearing and the marshes are being 
l"eclaimed. The population according to the censu:t 
of 1880 was 1778. 

The earliest settlements made in this hundred were 
on the bank of the Delaware River previous to Penn's 
ownershi;. A tribe of Indians, of whom Mechaeksit 
was Sachem, inhabited Thoroughfare Neck and· sold 
the land to the settlers. At an early date, John Mor­
gan obtained a warrant for eight hundred acres and 
John Denney for two hundred ucres adjoining: 
This land was purchased b.y William Pierce, to who~ 
a new war.rant was granted hi March, 1679. In the 
meantime, William Green settled upon theae tracts, 
and to eject him, it was necessfry for Pierce to resort 
to law. The following is a copy of the proceedings: 

"Atta ('.,on held in the Towne of New Castle by his m&jtlta authority 
the 3d & 4th of June, 1679. 

11 P'sent : Mr. John Mon, Mr. Peter ~Alricbe, Hr. fopp Outhout, Mr. 
Garrett Otto, Mr. Joh'n D'h~s, llr. Abram Man, Mr. William Seinphi)I, 
Justices: Captn Edw. Cantwell, High Sherife. 

" William Pierce, Plf., } In, au action of TNS8p8198 upou the 
" William Green, Deft., case. 

"The PU. declared that this deft. without .any Leaye or ordei'I from 
his hono: the Governo: this Court.or any other Lawful Authority has 
seated himself upon a Peece of Land made ove1· unto him y• Pit, : by 
John Morgen's srtcceasor: John Denny, and sence to wit in ye inonth 
of March Laest, a.-new granted and confirmed unto this Pit. : by this Court 
as by y• Records will appeare and therefore desires that this deft. may 
bee ordered forthwith to quit & Leave;• Land toy• end that bee may 
not binder this P)t. seating on ye same. The Debates of both parteea being 
heard and the deft. not producing, any warrt. : or order :l'.rom .~1 
Lawful authority for bis seating on ye Land the Oourt an of opinion, 

a plot of the town and lay out the streets, which they 
accordingly did. The town has a population of three 
hundred and fifty, and is situated near the centre of 
the hundred, about twenty-eight miles distant from 
Wilmington. It is the terminus of the Queen Anne 
and Kent Railroad, and also has railroad facilities on 
the Delaware Division. From this place large quan­
tities of grain and peaches are shipped every year. 
The business of the place is conducted by ~r. S. & W. 
Lattomus, William A. Scott, .J. S. Townsend, D. B. 
Maloney, _S. R. Warren, Tho-mas Maloney, L. B. 
Shoddey ~nd George M. D. Hart. 

"And do order that the Pit.: have)" land according to Pattenta of 
tbh; court Gr11nt and that y• d~ft. : qn!t y• mme. 

The following ~s a list of the town commissioners 
since the incorporation: 18~5-Eli C. Welsh, G. M. 
D. Ilart, D. B. Maloney, Albert Lynam, James T. 
,.raylor; 1886 and 1887-David Vvells, Thomas Brat­
ton, John W. Naudain, John Townsend, Eli C. Welsh. 

" This is a true Coppy takeu out of y• records w•h wee atteat. 
"JNO. MoLI., 
" PU:TU .4.L8IOHI, 
"J. d1haea, 
" WILL SBMPit.L • ., 

Morris Liston came to this hundred previous to 
1680, and purchased twelve hundred acres of land 
of the Indians. In that year, Mechaekeit, an Indian 
sachem, granted to Ephraim Herman the land between 
.Duck Creek ~nd Cedar Swamps~ommencing at 
.Morris Liston's corne.r. Liston ,came. from Engla~d, 
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TOWNSEND 

Where did the Townsend historical marker go? 
New Dollar General 
opens on Main Street 
By Dolores M. Bernal 
Dolores.bernal@doverpost.com 
@MOTDolores 

A new Dollar General is open for busi­
ness in Townsend. The Tennessee-based 
chain started welcoming customers at its 
soft opening last week. Missing from 
Main Street is however, the town's histori­
cal marker which was posted near the Fire 
Hall in December 2008. 

Historical markers provide a brief histo­
ry of a place or location. Such markers can 
be found in Middletown and Odessa 

Townsend's historic marker was ac­
quired by the then town's mayor and 
council through the help of Senator 
Bethany Hall-Long (D-lOth district) and 
Sen. Bruce Ennis (D-14th district). The 
installation cost the town $3,000. 

"I was very pleased to support getting 
_ _ the marker for Townsend. Thev are im-

portant tools of education and awareness. 
Townsend has a rich history in many as­
pects' including agriculture, with the rail­
road, and more;' Hall-Long told the Tran­
script. 

Kent Signs, a Dover-based signs compa­
ny removed Townsend's historical marker 
in late July so the sidewalk could be widen 
to meet Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) requirements. The marker was 
also too close to a new driveway from 
Main Street leading into the parking lot of 
the Dollar General, _¥:cording to DelDOT. 

Townsend's new Dollar · 
General began serving 
customers last weal&. 
· DOLORES IIA. BERNAl PHOTOS 

Delaware Public Archives Historical 
Marker Coordinator Kate Fair supervised 
the removal of the marker. The marker is 
at a warehouse in Dover where it's being 
kept with care, according to Fair. 

"We'll discuss what the location of the 
marker will be with the mayor;' said Fair. 
'We don't know when it'll be up again:' 

Removing historical markers is a rare 
occurrence, according to Fair. She could 
only recall one other instance when a 
marker had been removed - it happened 
in Newark when a marker had to be nro-

Townsend's historical marker was 
removed from Main Street in late July. It 
is now being stored in Dover. 

tected from a nearby building that was to 
be demolished. 
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found was too severe; he then went to Odessa to learn 
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verted October 16, 1821, preached as an itinerant in the 
spring of 1826, and in 1827 was junior preacher in 
the Dover District; 1828 in full connection. In 1345 
he was presiding elder of South Philadelphia District. 
In 1848 he was assistant book agent for a ?tfethodist 
b~kconcern in New York. 1852 Methodhst Episco­
pacy. 

l:NDUSTRIES.-The earliest record of any industry 
in .Appoquinimink Hundred is relative to the mills 
in No.xontown. ,vhen they were built is unknown, 
but in 1786 Thomas Noxon purchased an acre of land 
for the use of a new mill. The mill here referred to 
ia the mill known now as Drummond'~ Mill. From 
this it is fair to infer that the mil! now owned and 
operated by William E. Evans was erected at an 
earlier date. It is said that the old mill WMS used 
solely for merchant work, and that ships ran to it and 
·~~re loaded at its door. The new mill was erected 
for cU1tom work, which was no small industry at that 
time. After the death of Thomas N ox.on; in 17 43, he 
devised his mills to his son, Benjamin, who operated 
them for some time. In 1785 Benjamin Williams 
was the owner of these mills, and on the assessment 
list of 1816 they were charged to the estate of Joseph 
Curry. The old mill was afterwards owned r~pec .. 
tivelyby Samuel Hand, Edward Silcox and now by 

• 
William E. Evans. It i8 a four-story frame building, 
forty by thirty feet. The grinding is done by burr, 
and is entirely ca.atom work. T-he new mill was later 
owned by J. Drqmmond, and is now in the possession 
:Of the New Castle County Bank. It was refitted 
with a complete roller system in 1887, and has a 
capacity of a barrel and a half per hour. It ie now 
•operaied by Willits Clothier. The earliest rec­
ord of the mill now owned by I. A. Harmon is 
found on the assessment list of 1816, when it was the 
property of Joseph & Whitby, who was a large land­
owner in the vicinity of the mill. At his death the 
mill passed to his son, John, who operated it for some 
time, and then sold it to Garret Ottison. It was after­
wards owned by - Hunter, who sold it to -
McDaniel, by whom it was repaired and g-enerally 
improved. The mill was next owned respectively by 
John Lewis and William Johnson, by whom it was 
conveyed to the present owner. It was a two-story 
frame building, situated a mile north of Townsend. 
It is fitted up with burre1, and grinds cu.stom work 
---1· .. -·1 .. ,.,, .. 
~A\; Voll Y ~•J • 

A tile-yard was operated by l\iiatthews & Van Dyke 
for a few years in this hundred, about a mile south of 
Odessa. It has not been operated for the past twenty 
years. They had a capacity of three hundred thou­
aand tiles per year. 

In 1872 a brick-yard was opened a short ditstance 
south or Townsend by Samuel R. Warren. It was 
operated a year by him and then sold to D. B. Malo­
ney, the preaent owner. Brick are manufactured 
here during tiix months of the year and employment 

is given for that period to fi.ve men. Ab~ut.one .. hun-
..l--.J __ ,1 ,. ____ .,,.. _~ ...... 41.,u'laOYU~ o-.-• TnGITI!H!!.~~!!!'~Q ~!!-
UICiU DUU DQ9'1;i.LIUJ-UYV u&&,,;.&.,;,....,&.&'6 .,. • ...., _..__ 

nully for home consumption. . 
In 1883 Samuel R. Warren erected a saw-mill on 

his premises in this hundred. Thie he operated until 
1887 when he moved it to Sudlersville. It had a ca-

' pacity of two thousand fi. ve hundred feet per day and 
gave employment to thirteen men. Merchant and 
cu~tom work were executed. 

The brick-yard on the fa.rm of Samuel R. Warren 
was opened by him in 1886< It gives employment to 
six men for six months in the year. About two hun­
dred thousand bricks are manufactured annually. 

Appleton & Hart erected a frame building, twenty · 
four by forty feet, on the corner of Commerce and 
Gray Streets, Townsend, in 1882. They fitted it up 
with two evaporators and commenced evaporating 
peaches. In 1884 Appleton sold his share to Hart, 
who enlarged the size and capacity of the manufactory. 
The present capacity is eight hundred baskets per day. 
The evaporating season lasts six weeks per year and 
during this period G. M. D. Hart gives employment 
t.o one hundred operatives. The fr11it is 'shipped prin­
cipally to New York and Philn.delphia. 

i PosT-0FFICE.-The post-office was established at 
Townsend September 1, 1856. Levi W. Lattomus 
was the first postmaster. He was succeeded by J as. 
0. \\Tilson 21.nd John S. Wilson. William A. S~ott, the 
present incumbent, was appointed October 1, 1885. 

The post-office at Fieldsboro' was estabJished in 
1854 with Edward Silcox &a it.s first postmaster. He 
was succeeded in October 1858 by William Doughton. 
Joa. 0. Hutchinson, William W. Lynam and Fred­
erick H. Weller have also served as postmasters here. 
Edward Silcox: the first postmaster and preient in­
cumbent, took charge of the office again in 1886. 
One mail a day north and south is received here~ 
The stage line running from Townsend to Deakyne­
vi11e carries the mail to this point. 

HoTELB.-The first hotel in Townsend was erected 
about 1857 by Abraham Ingram. It was firat occupied 
by Joseph T. HilJ. The property was afterwards 
owned by William Scott and Levi W. ·Lattomus. 
Shortly after Mr. Lattomus' purchu" it was converted 
into a dwelling, in which he resided until big death, 
and it is -now occupied by his family. 

The present hotel was first opened as a restaurant 
about 1870 by James 0. Townsend. At a later period 
the dwelling was annexed b: the owner, Samuel 
Townsend. It has beea operated by several proprie~ 
tors and is owned and managed by J. L •. Dickinson. 

THE MUTUAL LOAN ASSOCIATION of Townsend, 
Delaware, was organized in February, 1888. The ftret 
officers of the association were: President, John F. 
Staats; Vice-President, William R. Martin; Secre­
tary and Treasurer, William A. Scott. Directors: 
John F\ Staats, WilJiam R. Martin, George M. D. 
Hart, D.R. Maloney, Thomas Maloney, George L. 
Townsend, S. R. Warren~ Dr. J. V. Crawford, T. A. 
Enos. 
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Seciss ara fosu.ed yearly and conti!rue nntil ~.ach 
Mhare has a value cf $400. It~ influence has been felt 
in the growth of the town. 

The officers are the same as above, with the follow­
ing e~ceptions: 

George L. Townsend succeeded William R. Martin 
as vice-president, and L. V. Aspril, Jr., and George 
W. Vandyke are directors vice William R. Martin and 
Dr. J. V. Crawford. ·· 

TOWNS AND VILLAGES.-Fieldsboro' is the name 
of a small village in Appoquinimink Hundred, about 
three miles northeast of Townsend, on the upper 
"King's Road." It was so named in honor of Wil­
liam Fields, whc at one time owned the land on which 
it is situated. It contains a school-house, post-office, 
a wheelwright and blacksmith-shop, two stores, kept 
respectively by Edward Silcox and James H. Garten, 
and about eight dwellings. 

Tuwnsend.-Previous to 1850 the only buildings 
within the present limits of Townsend were two or 
three huts occupied by negroes. The mo~t noted of 
these was Charles Lloyd, after whom the village was 
called Charley Town. About this period the land 
immediately west of the town and I a portion of the 
present town was purchased by Samuel Townsend, a 
man of considerable prominence in this vicinity. When 
the railroad was constructed through this section and 
a station located here, the question as to what the 
name of the ~epot shout d be caused considerable dis­
putatione Samuel Townsend advocated calling it 
"Townsend," and his opponents favored "Lancaster,'' 
which was said to be the old name for this tract. 
Townsend was finally agreed upon, and the town has 
&ince that time borne this name. The first store in 
the town was opened in 1851 by Levi W. Lattomus, 
whose sons are still engaged in business in the town. 
The village grew quite rapidly, and .A.pril.3, 1885, was 
incorporated as a town. The incorporators were Eli 
C. Welsh, George M. D. Hart, D. B. Maloney, Albert 
Lynam and James T. Taylor, who were also instructed 
to secure the services of a skillful engineer and make 
a plot of the town and lay out the streets, whieh they 
accordingly did. The town has a popu]ation of three 
hundred and titiy, and is situated uear the cent.re of 
the hundred, about twenty-eight miles distant from 
Wilmington. It is the terminus of the Queen Anne 
and Kent Railroad, and also has railroad facilities on 
the Delaware Division. From this place large quan­
tities of grain and peaches are shipped every year. 
The business of the place is conducted by J. S. & W. 
Lattomus, William A. Scott, .J. S. Townsend, D. B. 
Maloney, _S. R. Warren, Thomas Maloney, L. B. 
Shockley ~nd George M. D. Hart. 

f'!'RAPTRR T,TT. 

PREVIOUS to 1875, the territory included within the 
present limits of this hundred formed a portion of 
Appoquinimink Hundred. On March. 9 of that year, 
an Act of the Legislature was passed, dividing Appo­
quinimink Hundred by the following line: "Beginning 
at the mouth of Blackbird Creek, running with said 
creek and main branch to a bridge in the road leading 
from the head of Sassafras to Smyrna, thence westerly 
to the centre of said road to the cross-roads known as 
Dexter's Comer; thence southwesterly with the r"ad 
leading by Garman's school-house ; thence to Cypr~s 
Bridge, and thence down Cypress branch to the divi­
ding line between Maryland and Delaware." All the 
territory in N AW Castle County south of this line was 
declared to be Blackbird Hundred. About twenty.;.five 
years ago the land of this hundred was mostly covered 
with timber. At the present time, about one-half of the 
hundred is in a state of cultivation, producing peaches, 
wheat, com and oats in large quantities. The forests 
are rapidly disappearing and the marshes are being 
.-eclaimed. The population according to the censu:t 
of 1880 was 1778. 

The earliest settlements made in this hundred were 
on the bank of the Delaware River previous to Penn's 
ownership. A tribe of Indians, of whom Mechaeksit 
was Sachem, inhabited Thoroughfare Neck arid sold 
the land to the settlers. At an early date., John Mor­
gan obtained a warrant for eight hundred acres and 
John Denney for two hundred ucres adjoining: 
This land was purchased by William Pierce., to who~ 
a new warrant was granted i:ri March, 1679. In the 
meantime, William Green settled upon the$e tracts, 
and to eject him, it was necesSP.ry for Pierce to resort 
to law. The following is a copy of the proceedlnga : 

"Atta (',oat he]d in the Towne of New Castle by lrls m&Jtlll authority 
the 3d & 4th of J u.ne, 1679. 

" P'sent : Mr. John Moll, Mr. Peter :Alricba, Mr. fopp Outhont, Mr. 
Garrett Otto, Mr. Joh 'n D'baee, Mr. Abram Man, Mr. Wiillam Semphill, 
Justices: Captu Edw. Cantwell, High Sherife. 

" William Pierce, Plf.,. } In• au action of Tresspuse upon tbe 
" William Green, Deft., cue. . 

''The Pit. declared that this deft. without .any Leave or·orden from 
his hono: the Governo: tbia Court or any other Lawful Authority bu 
seatetl himself upon a Peece or Land made on1· unto him r Pit,: by 
John Mol'gen'e snCC8180r: John Denny, and senee to wit in ye month 
of March Laeat, a~new gl'flnted and confirmed unto this Plt. : by this Court 
u by y• Records will appeare and therefore deelree that this deft. may 
bee ordered forthwith to quit & Leave 1• Land toy• end that bee may 
not hinder thls Plt. seating on ye same. The Debates of both partees being 
beard and the deft. not producing, any warrt. : or order ~m &117 
Lawful authority for Iris seating on ye Land the Oourt an or optnlon, · 

"And do order that the Pit.: have, .. land according to Patten.ta of 
t..biis court Gnint &.ild iha.t y• deft. : q,1tt ~ eiame. 

" This i1 a true Coppy takeu out of ye records weh wee atteet. 
"J1f0. MOLL, 
" Ptnu ALUCBS, 
"J. d'hll.ea. 
u WJLL 8&11PIJ.L.,. The following ~s a list of the town commissioners 

since the incorporation: 18~6-Eli C. Welsh, G. M. 
D. Hart, D. B. Maloney, Albert Lynam, .James T. 
Taylor; 1886 and 1887-Da.vid ,v ells, Thomas Brat­
ton, John W. Naudain, John Townsend, Eli 0. \Velsh. 

Morris Liston came to this hundred previous to 
1680, and purchased twelve hundred acres of land 
of the Indians. In_ that year, Mecha~keit, an Indian 
sachem, granted to Ephraim Herman theJand between 
Duck Creek ~nd Cedar Swanipa-commencing at 
Morris Liston's corner. Liaton ,came from. England, 
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TOWNSEND YESTERDAY 

BY 

The Committee for 
The Slide Presentation 

TOWNSEND: YESTERDAY&. TODAY 

Sponsoreq By 

The Corbit-Calloway ~emorial 
Library · 

The Prize-Winning Photo 
A late 1880's view of the Quillen residence, formerly the Finley residence, and 
front room millinery shop of Mrs. Susan Finley Quillen, Main Street. Now the 
residence of Mrs. W. Milton Hart.1 

This Program is partially funded by the Delaware Humanities Forum, 
an affiliate of the National Endowment for the Humanities. 



THE YESTERDAY & TODAY COMMITTEE 

HORACE HOTCHKISS, ODESSA 
HAROLD WATTS, JR., TOWNSEND 
SUE JAMISON, ODESSA 
MARY HOMAN, TOWNSEND 
MIRIAM DOUGLAS, TOWNSEND 
CLARA REYNOLDS, TOWNSEND 
PETE RATILEDGE, TOWNSEND 
DEAN NELSON, ST. GEORGES 
GLADYS LESTER, ST. GEORGES 
JOANNEPASSMORE,ST.GEORGES 
GEORGE CALEY, SMYRNA 
GAIL GIBBONS, SMYRNA 
ROBERT BECK, PORT PENN 
JUSTINE NORMAN, PORT PENN 
JACK SPARKS, MIDDLETOWN 
MARY ELLA BOYLE, MIDDLETOWN 
MARGE LOVEN, ODESSA 
CAROLYN FORAKER, PORT PENN 
EDNA YOUNG, MIDDLETOWN 
JON WIDING, MIDDLETOWN 

TOWNSEND: YESTERDAY & TODAY 

A LOCAL HISTORY SLIDE PRESENTATION 

Narrated by 

HAROLD WATTS, JR. & MARY HOMAN 

Monday and Tuesday, February 18th and 19th 

at 

7:30 P.M. 

Sponsoring Organization: The Corbit-Calloway Memorial Library 
Contributing Organizations: The Townsend Women's Club; The Odessa Women's Club; Winterthur 
Properties, Odessa; The Odessa Friends of the Library; Central Grange, St. Georges; Duck Creek 
Historical Society; Smyrna Friends of the Library; The Port Penn Museum; The Port Penn Civic 
Association; and Appoquinlmink School District. 

A WORD ABOUT TOWNSEND 

Townsend , Delaware, known for its broad streets and comfortable homes, is the youngest of the 

three towns of the Middletown-Odessa-Townsend area . Indeed, before the 1850's the site was merely 

a cluster of cabins owned by blacks; it was named Charley Town after one of its more important 

residents. 

Samuel Townsend, a man in his thirties , had begun buying land in the area, and by 1851 Levi W. 

Lattomus had established a store. Soon the railroad came through and a depot was constructed . 

When it came time to name the growing village, Samuel Townsend succeeded in having it named after 

himself, although his opponents favored Lancaster, which is said to have been the name for this tract . 

By the late 1880's when Scharff was writing his history of the state, Townsend had been incorpor­

ated , a plot plan made, additional streets laid out, and the population had reached 350. By 1888, Em­

manuel Methodist Church, which was organized in 1871. with 15 members, had 125 members. At 

Gray and Commerce Streets Appleton and Hart had a peach evaporating business , and during the six 

week season 800 baskets per day were shipped to New York and Philadelphia ; there were 100 

"operatives." In addition, fresh peaches and grain in large quantities were the staple exports of the 

town . 

By 1908, when Henry Conrad was finishing his History of the State of Delaware, Townsend's 

population had reached 800. The rapid population growth had continued despite the ending of the 

peach prosperity after the 1880's. In addition to the Delaware Railroad which passed through town, 

the Queen Ann and Kent Railroad ended there. Townsend had become a bustling railroad center . 

Manufacturing was confined to a creamery and, in summer, a cannery. The Building and Loan 

Association, organized in the late 1880's, was a continuing success, and, according to Conrad, "Good 

schools, churches, fertile farming country ... make it a promising town." 

Since Conrad's day, Townsend has lost some population and the Maryland railroad connection, 

but it has adjusted itself to the late 20th century. Immanuel United Methodist Church with its impressive 

stained glass windows continues to be the architectural focus of the town . One may regret the passing 

of the movie theater which also served to bring people together, but television-watching has closed the 

movie theaters in many another town. 

In 1908, Daniel 8. Maloney, among others, was cited as a leading citizen. Into the 1970's, Miss 

Ethelwn Maloney, sprightly and perceptive, was an authority on Townsend. She would have enjoyed 

the present project: the sharing of memories and photographs of her town. 



At left is Samuel Townsend (1812-1881) 
for whom the town was first named Town 
send's Station in 1856; the name was 
shortened to Townsend in 1861. Mr. 
Townsend was a large land owner, store 
keeper, and builder of the first house In 
what was to be Townsend. 2 

At lower left: Samuel Townsend with his 
son, Samuel, jr. 3 

Below: The Townsend House build cl 768 
on Harmon's Mill Pond Road, where 
Jeanette Townsend Wilson remembers liv­
ing as a young girl. The farm is now own­
ed by Ruth Tindall. 4 

At right: Early 20th century 
view of depot, serving the 
Delaware Railroad and the 
Queen Anne and Kent 
Railroad. 6 

At left: The railroad green fac­
ing Commerce Street about 
1912. 5 

Since Townsend was the last 
stop on the Maryland railroad, 
the conductor is said to have 
called: "Towns' end; all towns 
end here," encouraging the 
mispronunciation of the town's 
name. 7 



Above: A 1920's view of Bar­
low's Farm, located south of 
the town on Barlow's Bridge 
Road. 8 

At left: a view of the Wright 
Canning Company between 
1910 and 1923. The tall man 
with a goatee is Steve James, 
weigh master and bookkeeper. 9 

Below: The Townsend Grain 
and Feed Company in the 
1940's. The Company, owned 
and operated by Elmer Case, 
dries wheat, corn, and soy 
beans, which It ships out on 
trucks. 10 

At right: Townsend's first school, "The Little Red 
School House," a one room building, facing "the 
main street In town." The school was built In the 
early 1860's; this photo was taken somewhat later. 
After Townsend's second school was constructed, 
this building was used as a harness room by James 
Dickinson. 11 

Below: An 1890 graduating class of twenty-eight 
members from the tenth grade of the Townsend 
School. 12 

Below: Townsend's second school built in 
1883 on North South Street. It first hous­
ed two classrooms, later three. It was used 
until it was destroyed by fire in 1915. 13 



At right: Townsend's school at The Levels. This photo 
was taken In 1923 of Miriam Douglas and her first 
through sixth grade class. Mrs. Douglas taught In the 
Townsend schools for forty-four years before her retire­
ment.15 

Below: The present school, built in 1932, prior to 1949, 
when two classrooms and a cafeteria were added. 16 

At left: Townsend's third school 
house, built during the 1915-1916 
school year. In 1932 It became 
Townsend's first fire house. 14 

Above: Emmanuel Methodist Church, built in 1886 in the yard 
where Fellowship Hall stands today. This building also served 
as a school after fire destroyed the school in 1915. 18 

Above: Old Union Methodist Church near 
Blackbird, founded in 1789. At first a log 
structure known as Dickinson Chapel, it was 
replaced In 184 7 by the brick structure shown 
here. 17 

At left: Immanuel United Methodist Church 
on Main Street, built In 1902-1903. The new 
wing was added In 1961. 19 



At right: Scott United Methodist Church, Blackbird. This church 
was dedicated In September, 1899 and continues to hold services 
each Sunday. Rev. Gary Tulak of Odessa is the mlnlster. 21 

At left: Methodist Parsonage on 
Main Street c1914. Rev. Warren 
Burr designed and helped to build 
this structure. 20 

At left: An early 20th century 
photo of the L.J. Dickinson Hotel, 
Townsend's second hotel. It was 
destroyed by fire before 1927. 
The first hotel, built by Abraham 
Ingram In 1856 Is now the 
Hesseltine home next to Wilm­
ington Trust. 22 

At left: Early 20th century 
photo of Lattomus' grocery 
store on the corner of Main 
and Commerce Streets; 
now owned and operated by 
Albert Buckworth. 23 

At left: c 1920 photo of Ha'r­
mon's drug store and Ice 
cream parlor. Reuben Har­
mon and Leon Buckson are 
standing out front. 24 

At left: Townsend Supply Company, 
first owned by Daniel B. Maloney, a 
hardware store and lumber yard as It 
appeared prior to Its 1972 purchase by 
Louis C. Mandes, who has replaced this 
building with a new brick structure. 25 



At right: Early 20th century photo 
of W. Harmon Reynolds' carriage 
and harness store on North Com­
merce Street. Now the Ralph G. 
Faries building. 26 

At left: Maloney's grocery store at 
Main and Commerce cl905; now 
Bartsch's sub shop. Building next 
door was the second post office. 
Levi Lattomus became first post­
master in 1857. The first post of­
ffce was a small building next door 
to Lattomus' house on Commerce 
Street. 27 

At left: "Old Hart's" office. Photo 
was taken about 1905. 28 

At left: Early 20th century 
view of Reynolds' variety 
store, Main Street. 29 

At left: Interior of Reynolds' store 
taken cl920's. This picture provides 
a view of the town's third post office 
at the rear of the store. 30 

At left: An 1890's view of 
Wlggin's Pond Dam. Later 
this site was known as Har­
mon's Pond. 31 



At right: An early 20th cen­
tury view of stream leading 
into Harmon's Mill Pond. 33 

At left: Scene at Harmon's Mill Pond, 
September, 1934. Today the mill Is 
gone and the pond Is overgrown with 
tall grasses. 32 

At left: An 1890's view of 
skaters on the mill pond. 34 
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At left: "Brookramble" on The Levels, 
built by James Crawford In 1805, was 
the 19th century home of Dr. James V. 
Crawford and the 20th century home of 
the George Ginn family. This house Is 
now owned by David and Allison 
Matsen. 35 

At left: The 19th century home of 
Thomas and Lucy Bratton on the cor­
ner of Main and South Streets. Photo 
taken cl890 shows Mrs. Bratton on the 
front porch. Present owners are Mr. 
and Mrs. Joseph Hutchlson. 36 

At left: A tum-of-the century photo of 
the Burge house on South Street. Mrs. 
Burge Is standln~ out front. 37 
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At left: A late 19th century 
photo of "the red house on the 
hill" on Railroad Avenue . 38 

At left: Looking north on Com­
merce Street at turn-of-the cen­
tury toward general store at 
end of street. The Lattomus' 
house and grocery store, now 
Buckworth's, are the second 
and third buildings on the 
right. 39 

At left: A similar view about 
1930. Note Hart's general 
store, formerly Maloney's, at 
far left. The house at right 
c1901 was build on the site of 
the store that burned. The Lat­
tomus' house, partly hidden by 
trees, is now the home of 
Agnes Mannering . 40 

At left: South Commerce 
Street cl 900. 41 

At left: Wyndfield Cottage, 
Main Street c1906. 42 

At left: Main Street M.E. 
parsonage with view of John 
Guessford's barber shop, 
Townsend's barber for sixty­
seven years. A building ad­
joining the barber shop 
housed Townsend's fourth 
post office before the pres­
ent brick post office was con­
structed. 43 

.. 



At left: Main Street cl895, 
looking west at the Gill House, 
now the home of Mr. and Mrs. 
John Farrow. 44 

At left: c 1905 view of Main 
Street. The house on the right 
Is now the home of Mrs. Dar­
win Beardsley. 45 

At left: Main Street looking east 
at the tum-of-the century, pres­
ently the homes of Mrs . 
Fenimore Douglas and Mrs. 
Elmer Pritchard. 46 

t 

At left: The home of George 
Hart, built in 1883; now the 
home of Florence Hart Taylor 
and Mr. Taylor. The homes of 
Leon Buckson and John Far­
row are also visible. 47 

At left: Tum-of-the century 
photo of Main Street homes, 
now Daniel Hutchison Funeral 
Home and the home of Horace 
Van Horn. 48 

At left: A turn-of-the century 
view of West Main Street. The 
first house on the left was last 
owned by Norman Hutchi­
son. 49 
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1Mr. and Mrs. Milton Hart 
2Maryetta Carey 
3Maryetta Carey 
4Frances Townsend 
11Esther Pratt 
6Clara Reynolds 
7Betty Hutchison 
8P ete Ratti edge 
9Mlss E.E. Wright, 

Aberdeen, MD 
10Elmer Case 
11Miriam Douglas 
12Florence Hart Taylor 
13Betty Hutchison 
14Mabel Beardsley 
15Miriam Douglas 
16Pete Rattledge 
17Mlriam Douglas 
18Maryetta Carey 
19Mirlam Douglas 
20Liston Watts 
21Emlly Mannerlng 
22Betty Hutchison 
23Madeline Farrow 
24Mabel Beardsley 

PICTURE SOURCES 

25 Agnes Mannerlng 
26Mirlam Douglas 
27Betty Hutchison 
21Betty Hutchison 
29 Ann Warrington 
30Ann Warrington 
31Betty Hutchison 
32Maryetta Carey 
33Clara Reynolds 
34Mabel Beardsley 
35Martin Insolo 
36Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Hutchison 
37Ethel George 
38Betty Hutchison 
39Betty Hutchison 
40Agnes Mannering 
41Betty Hutchison 
42Betty Hutchison 
43Betty Hutchison 
44Betty Hutchison 
45Florence Hart Taylor 
46Betty Hutchison 
47Betty Hutchison 
48Betty Hutchison 
49Betty Hutchison 
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